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For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded a
revenue of HK$817 million, dropped by 12.4% as compared to last
year; and a net profit of HK$72 million for the year, decreased by
34.2% over last year. Gross profit margin and net profit margin were
21.5% and 8.9%, representing a decrease of 3.7 and 2.9 percentage
point as compared to last year.

Due to the consumption intention strongly influenced by the torment
of whole external economy and keen competition of global handbag
industry, the Group's revenue and profit for the year declined
respectively. The Group, leveraging on the unrelenting efforts made
by the management, improved the product design and strengthened
the development of mid-high end products. As to the production
cost, even in the face of appreciation in Renminbi and escalating
labour and raw material costs in the PRC, the Group maintained its
market share and competitiveness in the handbag industry through
effective and stringent cost control and the implementation of
production process optimisation project. Moreover, the Group
management insist on the provision of excellent quality of products to
the customer, in order to maintain our long term cooperation
relationship. Even though facing the adverse business environment
and uncertain economy, the Group will stand shoulder to shoulder
with the customers to ride out the current difficult times.

It is expected that the external economy & fierce industry competition
would continue to be affected by the above factors. Also, in view of
the severe shortage of labour in the PRC and the surging labour and
raw material costs, it will be full of challenge for the handbag business
in the coming year. Nevertheless, the Group will strive to diversify its
product designs, strengthen the development of high-end products
with high profit margin, obtain engagements from new customers,
enhance the production processes, reinforce internal controls and
implement tight control over the cost in order to provide stable profit
for the Group.
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude to
our shareholders, customers and business partners for their persistent
support throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take this
opportunity to thank all colleagues and staff for their persistent
contribution to the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Wai Siu Kee
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2014
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Revenue and net profit attributable to equity holders of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2013 was HK$817 million and HK$72
million, representing a decrease of 12.4% and 34.2% respectively, as
compared to HK$933 million and HK$110 million respectively last
year. The basic earnings per share was HK8.8 cents for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and HK13.3 cents last year.

Revenue

The Group recorded revenue of HK$817 million for the year ended
31 December 2013, dropped by 12.4% as compared to HK$933
million last year. Due to the consumption intention strongly
influenced by the torment of whole external economy and keen
competition of global handbag industry, the Group's revenue for the
year declined.

Cost of sales

With the decrease in revenue during the year, the cost of sales
declined from HK$698 million last year to HK$641 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013, showing an decrease of
approximately 8.1%. Furthermore, the percentage of cost of sales to
the total revenue for the year was 78.5%, increased by 3.7
percentage points as compared to 74.8% for last year. Such increase
was mainly attributable to the escalating labour costs and raw material
costs from PRC inflation for current year.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses incurred for the year ended 31
December 2013 was HK$24.9 million, decreased by HK$7.4 million
as compared to HK$32.3 million last year, representing an decrease
of approximately 22.8%, consistent with the sales drop during the
year, which resulted in the decrease in direct selling expenses such
as testing charges, transportation, commission and sample charges.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses incurred for the year ended 31 December
2013 was HK$74.6 million, increased by HK$0.6 million as compared
to HK$74.0 million last year, representing an slightly increase of
approximately 0.8%. The administrative expenses for the year kept at
stable level.

Finance costs

Interest expenses incurred for the year ended 31 December 2013
was HK$0.5 million, which sharply reduced while compared to
HK$1.4 million last year.

The inventory turnover days of the Group was 62 days for the year
ended 31 December 2013 which was steady as compared to 59
days last year.

The average collection period of the Group was 51 days for the year
ended 31 December 2013 as compared to 56 days last year which
is in line with the normal credit terms of 7 days to 90 days granted
by the Group to its customers.

The Group's creditors’ turnover days were 35 days for the year ended
31 December 2013 as compared to 33 days last year which is in line
with the normal credit terms of 7 days to 60 days granted by the
suppliers to the group.
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The total shareholders' equity of the Group as at 31 December 2013
was HK$272 million (31.12.2012 restated: HK$270 million). As at
31 December 2013, the Group had current assets of HK$283 million
(31.12.2012 restated: HK$304 million) and current liabilities of
HK$122 million (31.12.2012 restated: HK$143 million). The current
ratio was 2.33 as at 31 December 2013 as compared to 2.12 as at
31 December 2012 (Restated).

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and credit facilities provided by its principal bankers in Hong
Kong. As at 31 December 2013, the Group had outstanding bank
borrowings of HK$17 million (31.12.2012 restated: HKE50 million).
These bank loans were secured by corporate guarantees provided by
the Company and its certain subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2013,
the Group maintained bank balances and cash of HK$43 million
(31.12.2012 restated: HK$80 million). The Group's net cash-to-
equity ratio (cash and cash equivalents net of total bank borrowings
over shareholders’ equity) was 0.09 as at 31 December 2013
(31.12.2012 restated: 0.11).

The Group possesses sufficient cash and available banking facilities to
meet its commitments and working capital requirements.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had a workforce of more than 4,000
people. The Group maintains a good relationship with its employees,
and provides them with proper training and competitive
compensation and incentives. The staffs are remunerated based on
their work performance, professional experience and prevailing
market situation. Remuneration packages comprise salary and
bonuses based on individual merits.
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The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance. The board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company believes that sound and reasonable corporate governance
practices are essential for the growth of the Group and for
safeguarding and maximizing shareholders’ interests. On 1 April
2012, the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Former CG
Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) was amended and renamed as Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report ("New CG Code”). The Board is
committed to complying with the code provisions as stated in the
New CG code to the extent that the directors of the Company
("Directors”) consider it is applicable and practical to the Company.

The Company has complied with New CG Code during the period
from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013, except for the following
deviation:

—  The Group has an Executive Chairman who also act as a chief
executive officer. The Executive Chairman with the assistance of
the Group's senior management team oversees and manages
the Group's business. Other functions normally undertaken by
a chief executive officer of a company are delegated to
members of the Group's senior management team. This
structure deviates from the code provision of Code that requires
the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer to be
separate and not performed by the same individual. The Board
has considered this matter carefully and decided not to adopt
the provision. The Board believes that the current management
structure has been effective in facilitating the operation and
development of the Group and its business for a considerable
period of time and that the necessary checks and balances
consistent with sound corporate governance practices are in
place. Accordingly, the Board does not consider it necessary to
change the current management structure. However, the Board
will review the management structure from time to time to
ensure it continues to meet these objectives.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions in 2011. All the members of the
Board have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company
that they have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2013. The
Model Code also applies to other specified senior management of
the Group.

Composition and role
The Board comprises:

Executive director

Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)
Mr. Kung Phong

Ms. Lee Man Ching

Ms. Poon Lai Ming

Independent non-executive director
Mr. So Wing Keung

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

The Board comprises four executive directors (one of whom is the
Chairman) and three independent non-executive directors. The three
independent non-executive directors represent more than one-third
of the Board. In addition, three of the independent non-executive
directors possess appropriate business, professional accounting
qualifications and legal expertise.

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic
development of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial
performance and the internal controls of the Group's business
operations.
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The independent non-executive directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective
corporate governance framework. The Board considers that each
independent non-executive director is independent in character and
judgment and that they all meet the specific independence criteria as
required by the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive director an annual confirmation or
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The independent non-executive directors are explicitly
identified in all of the Company's corporate communications.

The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving
the agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all directors.
Notice of at least 14 days have been given to all directors for all
regular board meetings and the directors can include matters for
discussion in the agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying
board papers in respect of regular board meetings are sent out in full
to all directors within reasonable time before the meeting. Draft
minutes of all board meetings are circulated to directors for comment
within a reasonable time prior to confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are
kept by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all
directors have access to board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information in a timely manner, which enable
the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed before it.

During the year under review, 4 full board meetings were held and
the individual attendance of each director is set out below:

Name of director E=pE

Ms. Wai Siu Kee wmIBmL L
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The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
specific written terms of reference. It comprises 4 members, namely,
Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. So
Wing Keung, Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei and Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence.
For appointment of new Director, the background, experience,
professional skills, availability to commit to the affairs of the Company
and, in case of INED, the independence requirements set out in the
Listing Rules, of the potential appointee will be taken into
consideration.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, all newly
appointed director of the Company shall hold office until the next
AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election. Every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years at the AGM. The
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

The Company's circular to be despatched to shareholders of the
Company will contain detailed information of the Directors standing
for re-election.

The Audit Committee was established in 2011 and its current
members include:

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei (Chairman)
Mr. So Wing Keung
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in
accounting, business and legal on the Audit Committee. The
composition and members of the Audit Committee complies with the
requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The new written
terms of reference which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee were adopted in March 2012 to conform to the
provisions of the New CG Code, a copy of which is posted on the
Company's website.
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The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Group's financial
reporting and other information to shareholders, the system of
internal controls, risk management and the effectiveness and
objectiveness of the audit process. The Audit Committee also
provides an important link between the Board and the Company's
auditors in matters coming within the scope of its terms of reference
and keeps under review the independence and objectivity of the
auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a
review of the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013.

During the year, three Audit Committee meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each member is set out below:

Name of member REHE

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 4 55 &
Mr. So Wing Keung Bk 58 ST
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence B

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2011 and its
current members include:

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei (Chairman)
Mr. So Wing Keung
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

All members of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-
executive directors. The Remuneration Committee advises the Board
on the Group's overall policy and structure for the remuneration of
directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
ensures that no director or any of his associate is involved in deciding
his own remuneration. The new terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee were adopted in March 2012 to conform
to the provisions of the New CG Code, a copy of which is posted on
the Company's website.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee has met during the year to determine
the policy for the remuneration of directors and assess performance
of executive directors and certain senior management and all
members have attended in the meeting.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the auditors of the Company
only provided audit services to the Company.

The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012 and its
current members include :

Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)
Mr. So Wing Keung

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

The majority members are independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee has the duty of reviewing annually the board
structure and composition.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were adopted
in March 2012 to confirm to the provision of the New CG Code, a
copy of which is posted on the Company's website.

The Nomination Committee has met during the year to approve and
adopt its terms of reference, all members have attended in the
meeting.

During the vyear, the Company continued to monitor the board
composition with regard to its diversity policy which requires board
appointments to be made based on merit and candidates to be
considered against an objective criteria, including diversity. In order to
maintain an appropriate mix and balance of talent, skills, experience
and background on the Board, the Nomination Committee developed
measurable objectives to implement this policy and monitored
progress towards achieving these objectives during the year ended
31 December 2013.
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The current board composition was also evaluated by reference to,
among other things, the age, gender, cultural and educational
background and professional experience of each director, against the
Company's business model and specific needs.

The Company believes diversity is important to enhance the Board's
effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to
maintain high standards of corporate governance. The Company will
continue to monitor and develop new objectives for implementing
and achieving improved diversity on the Board as and when it
considers appropriate with regard to the specific needs of the
Company and the market from time to time.

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on his appointment, so as to ensure that he has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Group and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There
are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and
professional development to Directors at the Company's expenses
whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on
changes and developments relating to the Group's business and the
legislative and regulatory environments to the Directors at Board
meetings or through emails.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5
of the New CG Code which came into effect on 1 April 2012 on
Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills and provided a record of training they received for the year
ended 31 December 2013 to the Company. The type of training
received is summarized below:

—  reading regulatory updates; and

—  attending seminars/forum/workshops relevant to the directors’
duties.
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Ms. Wong Yuet Ming joined the Group in 2004 and has been the
company secretary of the company since 2011. She is responsible
for advising the Board on governance matters and facilitates induction
and professional development of the Directors. The appointment and
dismissal of the company secretary are subject to the Board approval
in accordance with the Articles of Association. Pursuant to Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules which came into effect on 1 January 2012, the
company secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in the year under review.

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls
of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is
committed to implementing an effective and sound internal controls
system to safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group's
assets. The Board has delegated to executive management the
implementation of the system of internal controls and reviewing of all
relevant financial, operational, compliance controls and risk
management function within an established framework.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In
preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013, the
directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and have prepared
the accounts on the going concern basis. The directors are also
responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group.
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The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. The rights of
the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) are set out in
Company's Articles or Association.

Shareholders of the Company can: (i) convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM"); (ii) forward enquiries to the board of
directors; (iii) forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings and (iv)
nominate Directors for election. Details of relevant procedures are
available on the Company’s website.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information about
the Group's performance to shareholders through the publication of
interim results and annual results in a timely manner. In addition to
dispatching circulars, notices and financial reports to shareholders,
additional information is also available to shareholders on the website
of the Company.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders
to raise comments and exchange views with the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend annual general meetings for which the
Company gives at least 21 days' notice. The Chairman and Directors
and external auditors are available to answer questions on the
Company's businesses at the meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
directors. In addition, poll voting procedure is included in the circular
to shareholders dispatched together with the annual report.

There was no significant change in the Company's constitutional
documents for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Ms. WAI Siu Kee, aged 69, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Group who is also one of the founders of our Group. She is also
the chairman of Lee & Man Chemical Company Limited (Stock Code:
0746). Ms. Wai has more than 48 vyears of experience in the
manufacturing industry. She is responsible for the development of
corporate strategies, corporate planning and overall management of
our Group and in particular the marketing and development of the
business of our Group. Ms. Wai is the honorary permanent president
of the Hong Kong Baptist University Foundation.

Mr. KUNG Phong, aged 42, an Executive Director and Managing
Director of the Group. He joined the Group in 2008 and has over 14
years of experience in business development as well as extensive
knowledge in sales and marketing in both PRC and Hong Kong. He is
responsible for the management and development of the handbag
business of the Group. Mr. Kung is the spouse of Ms. Lee Man Ching,
the director of sales of the Group and a son-in-law of Ms. Wai Siu
Kee, the Group’s Chairman. Mr. Kung is also a member of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Committee of Jiujiang. Mr. Kung serves
as an executive director in Zebra Strategic Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 8260) whose share is listed on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Ms. LEE Man Ching, aged 39, an Executive Director and Director of
Sales of the Group. She joined the Group in 2007 and has over 15
years of experience in sales and marketing. Ms. Lee is responsible for
the merchandising and marketing functions of our Group. Ms. Lee is
the daughter of Ms. Wai Siu Kee, the Group's chairman and the
spouse of Mr. Kung Phong, the executive director of the Group.

Ms. POON Lai Ming, aged 58, an Executive Director of the Group.
She joined the Group in 1976 and has over 37 years of experience
in the handbag industry. Ms. Poon is responsible to provide
operational advisory services to the factory in China.
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Mr. SO Wing Keung, aged 62, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Group. He is the managing director of Sweda Limited.
Mr. So obtained a master's degree in materials engineering from the
Yanshan University. Currently, Mr. So is the Chief Honorary President
of Hong Kong Watch Manufacturers Association, an alternate member
of the General Committee of Federation of Hong Kong Industries, an
executive committee member of Hong Kong Electronic Industries
Association and the vice-president of The Mirror.

Mr. HENG Victor Ja Wei, aged 36, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Group. He is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified
Public Accountants. He holds a master of science degree of the
Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine, the University
of London. He is a member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Heng serves as an independent non-
executive director in China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited (Stock
Code: 0445), Matrix Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1005), Lee &
Man Chemical Company Limited (Stock Code: 0746). He also serves
as the company secretary and authorized representative of China Life
Insurance Company Limited (Stock Code: 2628).

Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence, aged 51, an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Group. He was admitted as a solicitor in
Hong Kong in 1993 and he is currently the sole proprietor of Tsang &
Co., H.M. Mr. Tsang obtained a bachelor's degree in science from the
University College London, the University of London. He also holds a
bachelor's degree in law from the University of Westminster, United
Kingdom. Mr. Tsang serves as an independent non-executive director
in Differ Group Holding Company Limited (Stock Code: 8056) whose
share is listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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Mr. NG Yu Hung, aged 59, Senior Manager of the Group. He joined
the Group in 1977. Mr. Ng has over 35 years of experience in the
handbag industry. He is responsible for the marketing and
development of the Group's handbag business in the European
market. Mr. Ng is the brother of Mr. Ng Yu Kuen, one of the senior
management staff of the Group.

Mr. CHIU Shun King, aged 51, Production Manager of the Group.
He joined the Group in 1984 and has over 28 years of experience in
the handbag industry. He is responsible for production planning and
overall production management of Gao Bu factory in China.

Ms. WONG Yuet Ming, aged 49, Company Secretary of the Group.
She is also the executive director, financial controller and company
secretary of Lee & Man Chemical Company Limited (Stock Code:
0746). She joined the Group in 2004 and has over 24 years of
experience in the field of auditing and accounting. She holds a
master's degree in business administration from the University of
Surrey, United Kingdom. She is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is
responsible for managing and overseeing compliance and reporting
obligations of our Group.

Ms. YU Siu Mui, aged 42, Senior Manager of the Group. She joined
the Group in 2001 as merchandiser. She graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor's degree in business
administration in 1994. She has over 11 years of experience in
marketing and development. She is responsible for the sales and
marketing of the Group's business in the United States and European
market.

Mr. CHAN Kam Bun, aged 65, Manager of the Group. He joined the
Group in 1996 as manager and has over 17 years of experience in
the handbag business. He is responsible to co-ordinate the
production activity in Gao Bu factory in China.
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Mr. NG Yu Kuen, aged 56, Senior Manager of the Group. He joined
the Group in 2009 and has over 22 vyears of experience in
administration and management. He is responsible to co-ordinate the
production activity in Liu Wu factory in China. Mr. Ng is the brother of
Mr. Ng Yu Hung, one of the senior management staff of the Group.

Mr. WANG Jian Mei, aged 44, Production Manager of the Group.
He joined the Group in 1993 and has over 24 years of experience in
the handbag industry. He is responsible for production planning and
production management of fashion handbag of Gao Bu factory in
China.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 31.

An interim dividend of HK3.5 cents per share amounting to
HK$28,875,000 in total was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK1.5 cents per share to the shareholders on the register of
members on 23 May 2014, amounting to HK$12,375,000 in total,
and the retention of the remaining profit for the year of
HK$31,131,000.

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at
a cost of HK$8,078,000 for the purpose of expanding its business.
Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors

Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)
Mr. Kung Phong

Ms. Lee Man Ching

Ms. Poon Lai Ming

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. So Wing Keung
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

In accordance with the provisions of the Company's Articles of
Association, Ms. Lee Man Ching and Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each of the other independent non-executive
directors is the period up to his retirement as required by the
Company's Articles of Association.

Ms. Wai Siu Kee, Mr. Kung Phong, Ms. Lee Man Ching and Ms. Poon
Lai Ming , have each entered into a service agreement with the
Company on 18 May 2011 for an initial term of 3 years, which shall
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving
to the other not less than 3 months' prior notice in writing or
payment of salary in lieu of notice to terminate the service contract.
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At 31 December 2013, none of the directors or the chief executive,
or any of their associates, had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations, which had to be notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities and Future
Ordinance (the “SFQO"), or which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"), to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The directors of the Company were entitled to participate in a share
option scheme adopted by LM (the “LM Share Option Scheme”),
details of which are set out in LM's annual report for the year ended
31 December 2013. No share option was granted under the LM
Share Option Scheme since its inception.

In addition, on 18 May 2011, the Company has also adopted a share
option scheme (the “Handbag Share Option Scheme") in which the
Company's directors and employees are entitled to participate, details
of which are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements. No share option was granted under the Handbag Share
Option Scheme since its inception.

Save as above, during the year neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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At 31 December 2013, shareholders (other than directors and chief M2013F12A31H RR(KAQAFES
executive of the Company) who had interests and short positions in HERBITBRABRIIN REARFZ KRG
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which have been RABROT  HEBEREBEZSFRAER
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of BIEXVEBE2 X3 DEE MR RA FIHKE -

Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to O RHENIRIBERF LA ERDIZE336
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as BEBEARRIFE 2 E Mz #Eam LK

follows: AT

Long positions wE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company RAREROIABILZ EBR

Number of Percentage of
issued ordinary the issued share capital

Name of shareholders Capacity shares held of the Company

e #T HARRARE BT

KRR &R &5 EEREE RAzBDE

Full Gold Trading Limited Beneficial owner (note 1) 618,750,000 75%

(“Full Gold") ERnBEBAMTI)
DJE Investment S.A. Investment manager (note 2) 48,794,000 5.91%
ES KB (MiF2)

Note 1: The long position of 618,750,000 shares were held by Full Gold Kia£ 1 : 618,750,000 % f% 15 2 4F & =2 | Full
Trading Limited which was owned by each of Mr. Lee Wan Keung Cold# B - HE BHITKRARHZFTE
and Mr. Lee Man Yan as to 55% and 45% respectively. Ms. Wai Siu BEERFENREESBIFEES%
Kee and Ms. Lee Man Ching are the directors of Full Gold. Rasp - ME LB R T REXHEL

T RFullColdz E % -

Note 2: The long position of 48,794,000 shares were held by DJE Investment Kist2 - 48,794,000 Bk 7 = #f & FEDIE
SA. which was controlled by DJE Kapital AG, which in tumn was Kapital AG#% %l 8 DJE Investment S.A. 5
controlled by Dr. Jens Alfred Karl Ehrhardt. & + M DJE Kapital AG 8| (5 Dr. Jens Alfred

Karl Ehrhardtize 1 o
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Long positions (continued)

Other than disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Company
has not been notified by any persons (other than directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Details of the related party transactions for the year are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements which are also the
discloseable connected transaction pursuant to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors,
these transactions entered into by the Group were:

(i)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(it)y either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there was
no available comparison, on terms that were fair and
reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company were
concerned;

(i)  either (a) in accordance with the terms of the agreements; or (b)
where there were no such agreements, on terms no less
favourable than those available to or from independent third
parties; and

(iv) within the relevant cap amounts as agreed by the Stock
Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions which
need to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”,
no contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly and indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers comprised approximately 47% of the Group's total
sales and the sales attributable to the Group's largest customer were
approximately 13% of the Group's total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group's total
purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders which, to
the knowledge of the directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital had any interest in the share capital
of any of the five largest customers of the Group.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2013.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
WAI SIU KEE
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2014
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Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF LEE & MAN HANDBAGS HOLDING LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lee & Man
Handbags Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 31 to 115,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2013,
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17 March 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #,Z2013F 12 A31H L F/E

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses

Interest expense on bank borrowings
wholly repayable within five years

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive
(expense) income

Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined
benefit assets

Notes

it &

WA 586
& A AR

E 7

H Al U A

Ho A U 25 K 85 18 7
THRE M

MEXH-—ZEARAEFA

EEEE ZRITER

B Bt At A
P B X 8

F A A 9

Hit2E (X ) W

N

P E R

%
H\

fEh g m)
#om gy

BE 2 AEMa

ltem that may be reclassified subsequently A % A] 55 & & #7 7 $8 =

to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising from
translation

Other comprehensive (expense) income
for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share (HK cents)

Bm oA -
RinEmELNERZRHR

FARAEMEBE (X H) KR

FAEZEKELER

FRAEF GBAL) 11

2013
HK$'000
THERT

817,344

(641,428)

175,916

5,065
(1,862)
(24,944)
(74,572)

(347)

79,156
(6,775)

72,381

609

(1,280)

(671)

71,710

2012
HK$'000
FET
(restated)
(F &%)

932,916
(698,164)

234,752

5,681
(12,649)
(32,326)
(73,997)

(1,430)

120,031
(10,045)

109,986

462

837

1,299
111,285

13.3

31
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Notes
MtaF
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% « 5 K& &% B 14
Prepaid lease payments TENHEKE 15
Investment properties ‘EYE 16
Deposits paid for the acquisition f& B ¥ ¥ « BE &
of property, plant and REZEMTE
equipment
Defined benefit assets AT =mEE 29
Deferred tax asset BEETIEE E 24
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories rE 17
Prepaid lease payments TE T & IE 15
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 & H b3R8 18
Derivative financial instruments #7448 T B 19
Tax recoverable A Wz B 7 18
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRE® 20
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables FET & 5 & H fth 5018 21
Amount due to a related JFE A B A R FRIE 22
company
Tax payable JE A B¢ 38
Bank borrowings RITE R 23
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBAEERE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERRBAEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3 RBAE
Derivative financial instruments $74 4 & T & 19
Deferred tax liability BRIEFIEAE 24
NET ASSETS BEEFRE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXREE
Share capital [N 25
Reserves k1

The consolidated financial statements on pages 31 to 115 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 17
March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wai Sui Kee
#@oH
Chairman

FE

31.12.2013
HK$'000
TERT

54,668
23,577
27,641

686
3,886

110,458

110,280
629
126,367
405
2,996
42,683

283,360

104,047

263
2
17,329

121,641
161,719

272,177

511

511
271,666
82,500
189,166
271,666

31.12.2012
HK$'000
FHETT
(restated)
(&= =51)

57,149
23,935
25,729

3,271
9

110,093
106,656
617
113,736
434

2,602
80,038

304,083

91,812

311
1,236
50,000

143,359
160,724

270,817
455

281
736
270,081
82,500
187,581
270,081

1.1.2012
HK$'000
FAET
(restated)
(Fe&5)

56,522
24,573
25,082

1,738
2,809
503

111,227
117,411

394
180,490

54,763
353,058

107,323

629
8,213
106,305

222,470
130,588

241,815

519
519
241,296
82,500
158,796
241,296

FIBEBEFISEMEAZEEM B RE
ER2014F317TEHREETSRBER
BT YR TN EERREE:

Kung Phong

L33
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #,Z2013F 12 A31H L F/E

Asset
Share revaluation
capital reserve
BE
BRAE  EfhRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT
(Note i)
(Ftati)
At 1 January 2012 20121 H1H
(originally stated) (R%1) 82,500 6,641
Effect of a change in accounting E&t K &8s F 2
policy (note 2) (Kia£2) = -
At 1 January 2012 (restated) 201241418
('E351) 82,500 6,641
Profit for the year F W F = -
Other comprehensive income  4F A H 4th & [ U 25
for the year = =
Total comprehensive income FAZEWEETE
for the year = =
Dividends recognised as BRIk R E
distributions (note 10) (KiaE10) = -
At 31 December 2012 (restated) K 2012F 12 831 H
(EE7)) 82,500 6,641
Profit for the year F A A = =
Other comprehensive (expense) 4 A E A 2 @ (% H)
income for the year & = =
Total comprehensive (expense) & A2 (2 H) Wz
income for the year Rk - -
Dividends recognised as EBRD K2R E
distributions (note 10) (Krat10) = -
At 31 December 2013 M2013F 12831 H 82,500 6,641
Notes:

(i)  The asset revaluation reserve represented the increase in revaluation
arising from the owner-occupied properties becoming to investment
properties prior to 1 January 2008.

(i) The special reserve of the Group represents:

(a) the difference between the nominal value of the share capital
issued by Lee & Man Development Limited (“LM Development”)
and the nominal amount of the share capital of subsidiaries
acquired by it pursuant to a group organisation in 1993;

(b) the difference between the nominal value of the share capital of
a subsidiary, LM Development, acquired pursuant to a group
reorganisation in June 2011 and the nominal value of the share
capital issued by the Company; and

(c) the expenses borne by shareholders for the listing of the
Company.

Translation
reserve

B iR
HK$'000
TET

5371

5,371

837

837

6,208

(1,280)

(1,280)

4,928

izt

Special Accumulated

reserve profits Total
FRIRE REDaEF &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
(Note ii)
(Kazii)
(38,562) 187,353 243,303

= (2,007) (2,007)

(38,562) 185,346 241,296
= 109,986 109,986
= 462 1,299
= 110,448 111,285

= (82,500)  (82,500)

(38,562) 213,294 270,081

= 72,381 72,381
= 609 671)

88
= 72,990 71,710

= (70,125)  (70,125)
(38,562) 216,159 271,666

() BEEHMMHELEN2008F1A1H
Bl HERRBYEXEE RIREWMEM
EINAE G-

(i) AEEZEFRIFRESE:

@

®)

©

BXERAERAR(TEXER])
BEETERAHEEREEEEM
MR 1993 F P B 2 % FI B B 1t A
ZBAHEZ Z5

RIBEEBEHAMN2011F6A T
Br—HHNBAREXERZK
AEEEARARBEZRTRARE
ZEE R
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Interest expenses
Release of prepaid lease payments
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Gain of fair value changes on derivative financial
instruments
Gain on fair value changes of investment
properties
Retirement benefit gain
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade receivables
Reversal of write-down of inventories
Interest income

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease in inventories

(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables

Increase in derivative financial instruments
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables

Decrease in amount due to a related company

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Profits Tax paid for other jurisdictions
Interest paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

mEEY

B3 5t 1

A

Mg BERREZTE
IS

R EROR
e B R
2l 2

TELBMTAAFEES

Y z8

RANEAFES DN

SIS R R &
FEW & 5 fR BB E
&5 18 [l
75 K (B 7 0 5k
A S A

LEESEPHPIILERT

A B2
fﬁi/ﬁ;

BER D

FEUE 5 Ko H At 7R IR (3% h0)

D
SROTE T AN

e & 5 & H Ak 3R IR IE 10
O 4)

& 1< B 38 X RLORL A
REXBMERE
ENEEMAER

B H A RDEHE & P IS X
ERNHME

REXBFERTFH

2013
HK$'000
TERT

79,156

10,678
447
626

(118)

(1,761)

(3.638)
(6)

(,571)
(138)

80,675
947

(12,631)
1,335

12,235
(48)

82,513
(8,020)
(144)
(47)

73,902

2012
HK$'000
FAT
(restated)
(F&%)

120,031

12,166
1,430
620

(278)

(123)

(175)
(621)
(168)

132,882
11,376

66,929
144

(15,511)
(318)
195,502
(19,354)
(14)
(1,430)

174,704



Annual Report 2013 & #

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #,Z2013F 12 A31H L F/E

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid

Bank borrowings raised
Repayment of bank borrowings

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE YEAR

REED

BEDE BELRE
BB E

HEWE  BFER&E
P 1S 5K IR

BEDE BEREREZ
ENES
REEZDMERSFH
METH

ENKE
HERRITHENK
BERITHER
METDAERTFH

RERERREER (BD)
1% 0 % 88
RENZRERER[RES
HHE

EXESHoXE
RERZAERERRS
HH

2013
HK$°000
TET

(8,078)
138

123

(686)
(8,503)

(70,125)
17,329
(50,000)

(102,796)

(37,397)

80,038
42

42,683

2012
HK$'000
FAT
(restated)
(#&E:5))

(11,029)
168

298

(10,563)

(82,500)

(56,305)
(138,805)

25,336

54,763
61

80,038
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2013F 12 31 H L FE

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter
22 of the Cayman Islands. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section “Corporate Information” of the annual
report.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s parent and ultimate
holding company is Full Gold Trading Limited (“Full Gold"), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). lts
ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lee Wan Keung (“Mr. Lee").

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
("US dollars"), while the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK dollars”) as the Company
is listed in Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
handbags.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #,Z2013F 12 A31H L F/E

RAFE  AEEEXERBATH
BEGMog((EEGEA

In the current year, the Company has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

SRMBETREYHREE

Amendments to HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to

Al -

BAMBHRE

2009F 20114

HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle R (IBET ) B2 BB
B 7 & 2R
FEE
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting BB EmE mE-HEeR
Financial Assets and Financial AERIE TR EERE R
Liabilities (7T A) afE
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Consolidated Financial A ®E SZEMBERRK
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Statements, Joint ZRE 1098 BETHR
Arrangements and Disclosure EAEBHRE WEREAMD
of Interests in Other Entities: ERIE1E R BRI
Transition Guidance BEMBRE i % ¥5 5
AERIE 1257
(3T 2)
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial BB BRE e M BmEk
Statements AR 105%
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements BB BRE aeLH S/
el =2
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other BB ERE WENHEME S
Entities AR 125% P £
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement BBMEHRE NYEEFE
AERIFE 1357
HKAS 19 (as revised Employee Benefits BB EAE EEBT
in2011) 195% (20114
BIERT)
HKAS 27 (as revised Separate Financial Statements BB EAE BIUMB®REK

in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised

Investments in Associates and

2758 (20114
LAEET)
BB ERE

in2011) Joint Ventures 2857 (20114 CR- YNG4
K1EET) ®E
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other BB 2R Hth2mE K=
Comprehensive Income F1|UERTIA) BB Z27
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production 7 7% (IFRIC)— BRESEE
Phase of a Surface Mine ZEE 2098 B B 2 I £R
DN

Except as described below, the application of the above

BRmES - RAEEEAEES

amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material EAEVBHRELENGREFAH AKX
FEIEFFEMBERELEFLR
EUBHmERABIKEFTELE
BRXE-

impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2013F 12 31 H L FE

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance
for, and disclosures about, fair value measurements. The scope
of HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair value measurement
requirements of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument
items and nonfinancial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable
value for the purposes of measuring inventories or value in use
for impairment assessment purposes). HKFRS 13 defines the
fair value of an asset as the price that would be received to sell
an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case of
determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction
in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions. Fair value
under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure
requirements. HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In
accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the
Group has not made any new disclosures required by HKFRS
13 for the 2012 comparative period. Other than the additional
disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13 has not had any
material impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #,Z2013F 12 A31H L F/E

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income. Upon
the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the Group's
“consolidated statement of comprehensive income” is renamed
as the “consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income”. Furthermore, the amendments to
HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option to
present items of other comprehensive income either before tax
or net of tax. The amendments have been applied
retrospectively, and hence the presentation of items of other
comprehensive income has been modified to reflect the
changes. Other than the above mentioned presentation
changes, the application of the amendments to HKAS 1 does
not result in any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive
income and total comprehensive income.

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011)
In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 19 Employee

Benefits (as revised in 2011) and the related consequential
amendments for the first time.
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HKAS 19 Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011)
(continued)

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) changes the accounting for
defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The most
significant change relates to the accounting for changes in
defined benefit obligations and plan assets. The amendments
require the recognition of changes in defined benefit obligations
and in the fair value of plan assets when they occur, and hence
eliminate the “corridor approach” permitted under the previous
version of HKAS 19 and accelerate the recognition of past
service costs. All actuarial gains and losses are recognised
immediately through other comprehensive income in order for
the net pension asset or liability recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position to reflect the full value of the
plan deficit or surplus. Furthermore, the interest cost and
expected return on plan assets used in the previous version of
HKAS 19 are replaced with a “net interest” amount under HKAS
19 (as revised in 2011), which is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. These
changes have had an impact on the amounts recognised in
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in prior years (see
the tables below for details). In addition, HKAS 19 (as revised
in 2011) introduces certain changes in the presentation of the
defined benefit cost including more extensive disclosures.

Specific transitional provisions are applicable to first-time
application of HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011). The Group has
applied the relevant transitional provisions and restated the
comparative amounts on a retrospective basis (see the tables
below for details).

EEEEAE IR H2EKE
HE 225 (BT F) (F&)

G ER FE195K (20115
K N EREN S8 R LE
BRZARRE HREAMBEHE
RAEMSAERFTEEENAR
BREAME ZBIHTRNATN =
%? FEEEN AR BELEIRE
""""" HTT_,"’J//\TJE &.ﬁtHﬂﬁE/Ea
=+ﬁ@mm9ﬂ ERERFN4&
EERE] WEERBEREK
Ne WEFIHREMEREMRERE
AARERAEMEEHKRKERR
NEREGEEMBERARER ZF
BRReEENBEIRBREE
MR BB EEEB LI BE
2 5% R 581955 A bR A4S BT FB A9 &t
ZEENEXNAREHARR £F
e ERE 195 (R2011F&1E
R TELADENE |2 EMA - &%
i@LLM%ﬁtﬁﬁuﬁﬁ
NeBBREENFHE BLEEF
ﬁﬁuﬁiﬁ%% m@ s & E
hEEWEENTE(RBGHRET
NHE) -BE BB ERSE
1958 (R0 F KB ERAE#E
B MR E AR X I R B R EE S
ReHEREEHE-

BAXEREESITERFE 195 (R
201 EF B3R BIEE@E G -
SEEABERARBE KR RERIR
ARSI ERET(EMAHGRET
XHEE) -



Annual Report 2013 & #

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #,Z2013F 12 A31H L F/E

The effect on the Group”s results for the current year

and prior year

Decrease in other income
Decrease in profit for the year

Increase in remeasurement of defined

benefit asset

Increase in other comprehensive income

for the year

Increase in total comprehensive income

for the year

Impact on basic earnings per share

Figures before adjustments

Adjustments

Figures after adjustments

H Al AR D
F A AR
ENMBEZRENZEERZ N

el

The effect on the Group’s financial position as at 1
January 2012 and 31 December 2012

Defined benefit assets
Total effects on net assets
Accumulated profits

Total effects on equity

As at

1.1.2012

H2012F

1A1H

HK$'000

FET

(originally

stated)

CREH)

RENGEAE 4816
HEEEZRYE

R 5% 7
HRRER BT E

4,816
187,353
187,353

Adjustments

AR
HK$'000
FAT

(2,007)
(2,007)
(2,007)
(2,007)

HEAKEEEFREFREZTE

2013
HK$'000
FHExT

(182)

(182)

182

FAEM 2

182

BREFBHN ¥

2013
HK cents
AL

2012
HK$'000
TAET

(277)
(277)

462

462

185

2012
HK cents
AL

13.4
0.1)

13.3

A2012F1A1HK2012512 A 31

BHEERSHBEMRRE
As at As at
1.1.2012 31.12.2012 Adjustments
H2012%F  R2012F
1818 12A31H AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FHET FHET
(originally
(restated) stated)
(&=5) (REF)
2,809 5,093 (1,822)
2,809 5,093 (1,822)
185,346 215,116 (1,822)
185,346 215,116 (1,822)

2

As at
31.12.2012
R2012%
12A31H
HK$'000
FAT
(restated)
(=51)
3271
3,271
213,294
213,294
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The effect on the Group’s financial position as at 1
January 2012 and 31 December 2012 (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferred Accounts®
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and ~ Mandatory Effective Date of

HKFRS 7 HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures®

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities'

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

A2012F1 818 K2012%12 A31
B EEGZAMBERRR2EE
(&)

AEBEYEREFEBATERM
BRRERZHATREETER
MG HmEER

BEAVBRE 2010F E 20124
AR (BT A) Bz ES
B 75 3R 5 22 8|
E

BEMBRE 20114 £20134F
R (BT A) BEZES
B 75 R 5 2E A
FE
BRI RE SR IAS
AR 95
EBMBRE ERIRTERS
AR E 1455
BRI ERE EBUBRE
AR E 95 K& EREIHK 2
BRI RE 8B B
AR E 75 SN
CHEN)
EBUMBRE BEER
ARIZE 105
BB BHRE

EREI125R R
BB G ER

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting'

FE275 (BETA)
BB TR REF =52
F195% (BT A) BB #R°
EEGTER RECHREER
325 (BETA) cRAafE'
BB e &R FEMEEZ
E365% (BETA) A E S EEE
BB TR PMEIEFRR
F395 (BT A) HHGAZTE'
EB(FRICO) -2 HE'

HK(FRIC)-Int 21 Levies'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.
Early application is permitted.

Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be
determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are
finalised.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.

F215
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Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 dlarify how an entity should
account for contributions made by employees or third parties
to defined benefit plans, based on whether those contributions
are dependent on the number of years of service provided by
the employee.

For contributions that are independent of the number of years
of service, the entity may either recognise the contributions as
a reduction in the service cost in the period in which the related
service is rendered, or to attribute them to the employees’
periods of service using the projected unit credit method;
whereas for contributions that are dependent on the number of
years of service, the Group is required to attribute them to the
employees’ periods of service.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 19 will have a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group does
not have any employee contributions to the defined benefit
plans.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning
of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and
“simultaneous realisation and settlement”.
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Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities (continued)

The directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 32 may result in more disclosures being
made in the future.

The directors anticipate that the application of other new and
revised standards will have no material impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
. has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as leasee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.
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Leasing (continued)
Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for
those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and state-managed
retrement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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Retirement benefit costs (continued)

For defined retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of the
reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains
and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if
applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is
reflected immediately in the statement of financial position with
a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised
in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a
plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined
benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised
as follows:

. service cost (including current service cost, past service
cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

. net interest expense or income; and

. remeasurement.

The Group presents the first two components of defined
benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item general and
administrative expenses. Curtailment gains and losses are
accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit assets recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the actual deficit or
surplus in the Group's defined benefit plans. Any surplus
resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of
any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.
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Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity (the translation reserve).
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interest are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amount of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time. If the
presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such investment
properties are measured in accordance with the above general
principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected
manner as to how the properties will be recovered).
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Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and the deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories including loans and receivables and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"). The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group's financial assets classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are derivatives that are not
designated as hedging instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in the
periods in which they arise.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or
loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are in addition assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period ranged
7 to 90 days and observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all loans and receivables with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade or other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

The Group's financial liabilities are classified into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The Group's financial liabilities classified as financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are derivatives that are not
designated as hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in the
periods in which they arise.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Other financial liabilities

The Group's other financial liabilities mainly include trade and
other payables, amount due to a related company and bank
borrowings. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilites when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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Impairment losses on tangible assets (continued)

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make various estimates based on past experience and
expectations of the future and other information. The key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period that can significantly affect the carrying amounts of
assets recognised in the consolidated financial statements
within the next financial year are disclosed below.

Impairment loss on trade receivables

The assessment of the impairment loss on trade receivables of
the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and aging
analysis of accounts and on management's judgment. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness of each customer. If the financial conditions of
the Group's customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required. Impairment is made based on the
estimation of the future cash flow discounted at the original
effective rate to calculate the present value. As at 31 December
2013, the carrying value of trade receivables (net of impairment
loss) and bills receivables was approximately HK$117,929,000
(2012: HK$109,469,000).

Write-down of inventories

Management reviews the inventories listing at the end of each
reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for
use in operation. Allowance was made by reference to the
latest market value for those inventories identified. Where the
net realisable value is less than the cost, a material write down
may arise. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of
inventories (net of allowances) was approximately
HK$110,280,000 (2012: HK$106,656,000).
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Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. The board of directors of
the Company determines the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The directors work
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model and
to understand the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation technigues that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. Notes 16 and
34c provide detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets and liabilities.

Revenue represents revenue arising on the manufacture and
sale of handbags.

HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision makers
("CODMs"), being the executive directors of the Company, in
order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance. The CODMs review the Group's profit as a whole,
which is generated solely from the manufacture and sale of
handbags and determined in accordance with the Group's
accounting policies, for performance assessment. Therefore no
separate segment information is prepared by the Group.

ARBEFERMGEBRRE

WHMBE2HRMS  BOAKEEE
RBEDEATFEFE ARAE
Zen A FEFEEERBEZMA
B % Af7

REHEERRBZAFER K
SERAERERIBEMSHE -
EYEE-RBABERZBERLT
AEBZRE=ZSRERMGLERM
ETHE - BEEERABRINEMG
EMETAERIEAMERZ
REXRMEEABIER X THREH
BENABLRAFERBDZREA-

AEERAERLIRBAER
MIB T 28 AR 2 E X
B ETEIZERTRAZRAYF
BE-MF16R34cREEBETE DT
HEE&%EZ“$@%%Z%
ER - BABBELEERR
AEFL

WAERERHEFRAELEN
WA e

BEARUBREENFSHRRELE
DEMEAABREERAEE D
BRERELIE MAKEXTEZ
BREANTIEZZERREAL A
ARABATEFTSEHREAAZD
BE - AMEHERDENFZDH
KRB -TBEERRABRANAEE
HERRN MASERIERE
AERHEETFR URRAEED
SHRRFAGERR - Bl NEHE
W B AR EEIBL D BEF
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The Group's operations are located in the United States of
America (“USA"), Europe, Hong Kong and the Mainland
People's Republic of China (the “PRC"). Sales to the largest
customer contributed to 12.5% (2012: 22.6%) of the Group's
total turnover.

Revenue from customers from sales of handbags of the
corresponding years contributing over 10% of the total sales of
the Group are as follows:

Customer A ZFA
Customer B =B
Customer C EPC

The Group's investment properties are located in Thailand. The
rest of the Group’s non-current assets, other than defined
benefit assets and deferred tax assets, are located in the PRC.

AEBEBOMRER BN - B
BERPEARLMBE(HRH]) K
- mARPZHERGEAEER
R 2 12.5% (2012 : 22.6%) °

BEAEEREESTE10%8 FRIHE
ERFP HEFEHEHEKRADT :

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAT
101,813 129,154
89,935 210,415
89,070 70,798

AEBNREMEMNTE - Her
MIERBEE BRRAENZEEIN
FOEERAEE - AR E -
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The Group's revenue from external customers by geographical FAAREERBINIREFE 2 A
location during the year is as follows: Mm@l #FBoT :

Revenue from
external customers

REIIBEFHEA
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET AT
USA ES 326,429 336,568
Italy BAM 170,720 248,913
Other European countries H A BONE R 50,529 47,669
The Netherlands fA7 8 49,565 41,246
Hong Kong BE 37,012 34,394
The United Kingdom Y 19,602 39,149
PRC H 17,692 24219
Canada YN 16,752 9,701
Germany 1= 11,457 27,474
South American countries EEIETER 682 32,762
Other Asian countries WD 116,904 90,821

817,344 932,916
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Net exchange loss

Reversal of impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade receivables

Gain on fair value changes on derivative
financial instruments

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Gain on fair value changes of investment
properties

The charge comprises:

Current tax:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Other jurisdictions income tax

Underprovision in prior year
Hong Kong Profits Tax

Deferred tax (note 24):
Current year

2013
HK$'000
FH T
[ 518K 55 (7,379)
e U 2 5 AR FOR B [B]
PTESRMI AN FEKE
1,761
HEME  BE L& ERE
118
KEWMEZ A FEEMGKE
3,638
(1,862)
2013
HK$'000
FTH T
T B
KEZEHIE
BEEEH 6,435
R ERERH 69
EMalEERAEH -
6,504
AIFEDRBIE
BEEBERM 32
EIERLIE (i aE24) -
KEE 239

6,775

2012
HK$'000
TAET

(13,225)

175

123

278

(12,649)

2012
HK$'000
TAET

9,430
24

9,456

333

256
10,045
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Hong Kong

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

According to the 50:50 onshore/offshore arrangement
between the Group and the Inland Revenue Department in
Hong Kong, certain profit of the Group is not subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax.

PRC

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Other jurisdictions

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Bk

BAENBRILIRBRBEZFE 2 @&
JE R R MR 16.5%H K5 H o

BEAEEEESHRBERILZ
50:503EBE R BELH - AEE
Z2ETAENEBBNEEER -
HPE
BEPBRDEMBHERSEMR
BERERIES  PEMEBARZ
FHEH 20081 H1HEA25% e

Hit B AR

Hie)A#ER 2 HRIATIIEA R A
ERER R EMEAE -

6/
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The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before FABBRXEGEEEE LEM
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and ZEHKFRSATAEEERNT

other comprehensive income as follows:

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(restated)
(FEE75))
Profit before taxation B F5 A1 S A1) 79,156 120,031
Tax at the domestic income tax rate LR PTG 35X 2K 16.5% 2 18
of 16.5% 13,061 19,805
Tax effect of expenses not deductible in B ERTR IR AR
determining taxable profit X BBEE 521 794
Tax effect of income not taxable in & T B AR T M s S AR AR
determining taxable profit WAZRGZE (623) 27)
Tax effect of temporary difference not RERERZENHETE
recognised 36 =
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMBEBEZHBETE - 31
Tax effect of profit not subject to tax under 3250 : 50 % B T~ 8 /8 J& Fi )ik 7
50:50 arrangement 2B EE (6,435) (9,071)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BABARERCHIEEE
recognised (99) (1,831)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries HthalZRENREZR 2
operating in other jurisdictions me 14 11
Underprovision for tax in prior year BEFEZPRNIE 32 333
Others EHAh 268 =
Income tax expense for the year FARMBHX 6,775 10,045
Details of deferred taxation at the end of the reporting period BEERBERBEMRERFALZ

and during the year are set out in note 24. FIEE T EE24 ©
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2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Profit for the year has been arrived at after A& M E M (GTA) -

charging (crediting):

Directors’ emoluments (note 12) EEEHM(HEI2) 2,859 2,856
Other staff costs Ho Al B B R 250,276 232,175
Retirement benefit schemes contributions & 4K 8 F 51 21 4 7%

(excluding directors) (BEERBRIN 1,125 1,028
Total staff costs BTIRAMERE 254,260 236,059
Release of prepaid lease payments T8 {70 & FRE i 626 620
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR B & 1,036 1,010
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses & R A& H K177 & 5k &

(including reversal of write-down of (B 517 B E O #

inventories of HK$4,57 1,000 4,571,000/ 7T

(2012: HK$621,000)) (2012 : 621,000 L)) 641,428 698,164

Depreciation of property, plant and ME- BEMRKBIITE
equipment 10,678 12,166
RITFE WA (138) (168) 69

Interest income on bank balances
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2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Dividends recognised as distributions FREERDIKZKE
during the year:
Final dividend of HK5 cents per share for HE2012F12A831HIEFE
the year ended 31 December 2012 KRS F RSB 41,250 -
Interim dividend of HK3.5 cents per share  #E2013F 12 A31 B I FE
for the year ended 31 December 2013 EARR B AR 3.5 L 28,875 =
Final dividend of HK5 cents per share for ~ #Z2011 412 831 B ILFE
the year ended 31 December 2011 REAAR BB RR 5 - 41,250
Interim dividend of HK5 cents per share for & Z=2012F 12 A31HILF &
the year ended 31 December 2012 1 HA B B = AR s A Il - 41,250
70,125 82,500
A final dividend of HK1.5 cents per share in respect of the year EEEEBREHZE2013F 124
ended 31 December 2013 has been proposed by the directors FBLEFEZARAREGRISE
and is subject to approval by the Company's shareholders in I EAFARBD BRERBEFK
annual general meeting. g EBtE-
The calculation of the basic eamings per share is based on the REXRBFNTEF AR
profit for the year of HK$72,381,000 (2012: HK$109,986,000 72,381,000 7T (2012F (&£ E51):
(restated)) and 825,000,000 (2012: 825,000,000) shares. 109,986,0007% 7T,) [ 825,000,000 %

(2012 : 825,000,0008%) fE=+ & -

Diluted earnings per share is not presented because there were MR ZMEFEHES HTHE
no dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the years. Tak ALRTEZIERESTR

7 o
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The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2012: 7)

directors were as follows:

Year ended 31.12.2013

Executive directors

Wai Siu Kee (Chief Executive)
Kung Phong

Lee Man Ching

Poon Lai Ming

Independent non-executive
directors

Heng Victor Ja Wei

So Wing Keung

Tsang Hin Man Terrence

Year ended 31.12.2012

Executive directors

Wai Siu Kee (Chief Executive)
Kung Phong

Lee Man Ching

Poon Lai Ming

Independent non-executive
directors

Heng Victor Ja Wei

So Wing Keung

Tsang Hin Man Terrence

BZ2013512A31H
LEE

HITEFE

wom (TR AE)
B

FXi4

EEH

BUIINTEF

TR 4
&K R
BREX

HZE2012%12A31H
HEE

HITEF

B (fTEAE)
B

FXi4

EEH

BUFANTEF
TR 4

&K R
BREX

Fees

ik
HK$'000
TAET

120
120
120

360

Btk A F762(2012 : 762)

EZ2MemT
Other emoluments
Hit <

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other schemes
benefits contributions
¥eR RIKEF
Hitt5@F HE B3N
HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET

1,170 -
540 15
384 15
360 15

2,454 45

1,170 —
540 14
384 14
360 14

2,454 42

Total

2
HK$'000
TET

1,170
555
399
375

120
120
120

2,859

1,170
554
398
374

120
120
120

2,856

a
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Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the EXREESUEEHMz ALF
Group, one (2012: one) was a director of the Company whose B IEIML(2012 12 ) A A A &
emoluments are disclosed in note 12 above. The emoluments E-HEFMEHE RN EXXHFEI12-M
of the remaining four (2012: four) individuals were as follows: H &40 (2012 400) &= B H M A
TzBemT
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
Salaries and other benefits e kEMERN 3,006 3,078
Contributions to retirement benefits RORAE N ET 3 3R
schemes 60 55
Discretionary bonus payments ~EHEBES 2,366 434
5,432 3,567
The emoluments were within the following band: e F ToIEE :
2013 2012
Number of Number of
employees employees

EE®E EEHE

Not exceeding HK$ 1,000,000 7 481,000,000 7T 2 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T &

1,500,000 7T 1 =
Over HK$2,500,000 it 18 2,500,000 7% 7T 1 =
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Furniture,
fixtures and
Buildings equipment
B #E
BF kEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
CcoSsT A
At 1 January 2012 R2012F1A1H 97,051 28,192
Currency realignment (R EE S = 8
Additions NE - 513
Disposals & - (1,223)
At 31 December 2012 M20129F 12 A31H 97,051 27,490
Currency realignment & AR - 13
Additions NE - 1,082
Disposals HE - (338)
At 31 December 2013 M2013F 12 A31H 97,051 28,247
DEPRECIATION wE
At 1 January 2012 M201261H1R 63,578 22,524
Currency realignment R - 2
Provided for the year REFERE 4,852 2,102
Eliminated on disposals & R R - (1211)
At 31 December 2012 M2012F12A31H 68,430 23,417
Currency realignment R AR - 5
Provided for the year REERE 4,853 1,639
Eliminated on disposals o & B BR - (336)
At 31 December 2013 M2013F12A31H 73,283 24,725
NET BOOK VALUE REFEE
At 31 December 2013 M2013F 124311 23,768 3,522
At 31 December 2012 R2012%12A31H 28,621 4,073

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

depreciated on a straight-line method at the following rates per

annum:

Buildings and leasehold improvements 5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 25%
Plant and machinery 20%

Leasehold Motor  Plant and
improvements  vehicles machinery Total
BER
HEMEER "E e &t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FTET
22,017 7,047 45316 199,623
6 = 44 58
6,457 961 4,836 12,767
= (557) (1,899)  (3,679)
28,480 7451 48,297 208,769
10 3 125 151
267 688 6,041 8,078
- (1622 (1267)  (3.227)
28,757 6,520 53,196 213,771
12,459 6,564 37,976 143,101
= = 10 12
1,129 373 3,710 12,166
= (557) (1,891)  (3,659)
13,588 6,380 39,805 151,620
1 = 21 27
1,254 432 2,500 10,678
- (1,622 (1264)  (3,222)
14,843 5,190 41,062 159,103
13,914 1,330 12,134 54,668
14,892 1,071 8,492 57,149

L= BEMREERBZITE
TIABSOER T FRIFTE

EFRAEMELRE 5%
B HERERME 20%
E 25%
R 5 B 1 25 20%

The carrying value of the Group's property interests comprises
buildings on land under medium-term land use rights in the
PRC.

AEEYERaNEREREESD
BIRAZETH L ERE L
EHyEEY -
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The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land

in the PRC under medium-term lease.

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Non-current asset

Current asset

At fair value
Completed investment properties

Balance at beginning of year

Gain on property revaluation

Effect of foreign currency exchange
differences

Balance at end of year

Unrealised gain on property revaluation
included in profit or loss (included in
other gains and losses)

S S
& =
my
e my

mt

BAYHE
EXTTREDE
F )4

YES=RCE &
SNEER ZRNTE

FRER

AEBzRNEERBEREDE

BAZHHBEE L -
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
23,577 23,935
629 617
24,206 24,552
Year ended Year ended

31.12.2013  31.12.2012
BZE2013F EHZE20124F

HABHNMEEHZAER
2 (5 A E A 26 % 5 48)

128318 12A31 8
LtFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
25,729 25,082
3,638 -
(1,726) 647
27,641 25,729
3,638 -
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The Group's property interests held for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012 has been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out on 27 December 2013
and 25 December 2012 respectively by Thai Property Appraisal
Lynn Phillips Co. Ltd., independent qualified professional
valuers not connected to the Group.

The fair value was determined based on the market approach
for the land and cost approach for the buildings. The market
approach uses prices and other relevant information generated
by market transactions involving comparable properties. In the
cost approach, the value of the buildings is determined by the
cost of replacing the buildings, under which estimates of the
current costs of constructing new but similar buildings with
allowance for deprecation are made. There has been no
change from the valuation technique used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the land was the sales
prices of properties nearby the Group's land, which ranged
from HK$295/sq.wah to HK$2,363/sq.wah while the estimated
price of the Group's investment properties is HK$945/sq.wah
where wah is a common unit of length used in Thailand and
one unit of wah is equal to 2 meters. An increase in the sales
prices would result in an increase in fair value measurement of
the land, and vice versa.

A key input used in valuing the buildings was the allowance for
depreciation used under cost approach, which was 38% for the
buildings. An increase in the allowance for depreciation would
result in a decrease in fair value measurement of the buildings,
and vice versa.

AEEFENEENREAKLE
REBAFEEENGE XLHEHE

REEMKEYMFEN2013F12A
318 &2012F 12 A31 B A FE
DIREREASEMEFENS
57 f# {8 Bl Thai Property Appraisal Lynn
Phillips Co,, Ltd. - 9 5l 722013 12
HA27H8 K2012% 12 A25B # 17K
HEEE -

THMEFHRFET S HRE
MHEERKAEETE - M H AR
AhBRMERXFGELEZEBRREA
A ER - RAAET - BF(E
BEREREFRAEE  WEIF
MEREH RBUET (REHR
BERE) OBREKAE - G ERMR
EFAMERMBELERR

R EMENRFER  MENK
BEZEERREREAMRER -

THEEMERANEEE AR
AMMAEE T MY ENHERE -
H #5 B /> F % 7£295/sqwah £
JL2,363/sqwah 2 B - M & &
REWMEDN G ER BB TS/
sqwah " wah R ZEEF AN RE &
i+ — & B fzwah & R 7 MoK o 88
EERNERBESIRLHMAT
B EMNER R2TA -

1 {84 5 B 4R PR #0 5 B A BUIR
BRBRAEETHE R BT
S #038% - 47 B 542 6 8 4 @ 3|
HEFATEHBOTRE R

75



Lee & Man Handbags Holding Limited 32 X F £ % @ 5 R 2 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2013F 12 31 H L FE

Details of the Group's investment properties and information

about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2013 are as

follows:

Industrial property units located in Thailand

UREENTEET

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

/6

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

JR
F R

LR on

BREAAEER2013F12A31H 2
REYWEMNRFERBRERST

mF

Level 3
3R

HK$'000
TAET

27,641

Fair value
as at
31.12.2013
NEE
R2013 £
12A31H
HK$'000
FET

27,641

ARERTEMERFIREANE

H oo

2013
HK$'000
FHET
43,249
45,244
21,787

110,280

2012
HK$'000
TAT
42,033
35,329
29,294

106,656
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Trade receivables
Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Bills receivables
Prepayments and deposits

Other receivables

Total trade and other receivables

W E 5 BR3K
o RIRARERE

FE U R 1%

BARKRET &

H A & WK IR
FEU B 5 Ko H At 7K

The aged analysis of trade and bills receivables based on the

invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Not exceeding 30 days
31-60 days

61-90 days

Over 90 days

THBE30K
31 260K
61290k

90 KRN k

2013
HK$'000
TRER

84,669

84,669
33,260

117,929
7,987
451

HEE 126,367

2012
HK$'000
THEL
83,981

(16)

83,965
25,504

109,469
3,145
1,122

113,736

EWRR R BERNRE SRR

SRHZKREDTAOT

2013
HK$°000
TERT
58,155
39,598

19,950
226

117,929

2012
HK$'000
THET

59,138
32,261
17,471

599

109,469

7’
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The following amounts of trade receivables, bills receivables
and other receivables are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities.

Renminbi ("RMB") AR
HK dollars T

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer's credit quality by investigating its historical
credit record and then defines its credit limit. The Group
generally allows its trade customers an average credit period
ranging from 7 to 90 days. During the year, the Group has
provided allowance for doubtful debts of Nil (2012:
HK$16,000) for certain receivables aged over 90 days.
Included in the Group's trade receivable balances are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$7,003,000 (2012:
HK$7,525,000) which were past due at the reporting date but
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.
There has not been a significant change in credit quality of the
relevant customers and the Group believes that the amounts
are still recoverable as there are continuing subsequent
settlement. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

NTEBREZ R BIREEREM
J& U 5K IR 15 DA 4R B SR [ fE B8 B9 I
EEBEUIINNEEZR-

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET
91 344

936 161
1,027 505

RERTEEFZEFA NEEFE
BATHEBATZEELETIAE
FPrBGEEEEEEMATERE
EREE - AEE—RGETESE
PZRIEBFEHRBTIEIOKR - RF
N AEBTERBREF 2 E
U 3R T8 BR B2 BB 3B 90K E ) R BR #
% (2012 : 16,000 L) - K= B
8k ™ {E %77,003,0007% 7T (2012 :
7,525,000 L) M EKE 5 R R E
BE - ARMEEEFPZEEEERL
MEANEERELE A&EHR
R ERIET A - R R
BEEBERE AEXEREZRX
H2HEHm e
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Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not BHMARENERE S RXER
impaired BT
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Not exceeding 30 days A HE30K 748 678
31-60 days 31E260K 5,323 6,207
61-90 days 61 290K 706 69
Over 90 days 90KM E 226 571
Total = 7,003 7,525
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REEBREZEZHUOT
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Balance at beginning of the year F )4 R 16 663
Impairment losses recognised on receivables JE LS BR SR B R B - 16
Amount written off as uncollectible Teeld el 2 Mk & 5 (16) (461)
Amount recovered during the year FABWE 2 &5 - (202)

Balance at end of the year FRAEER - 16



Lee & Man Handbags Holding Limited 32 X F £ % @ 5 R 2 7]

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2013F 12 31 H L FE

Current Non-current
5 H RH
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT 78T BT BT
Derivative financial assets TEESMEE
Foreign currency forward contracts SN R B3 & 49 (K 77 i)
(Note i) - 434 - —
Structured foreign currency forward 45 #& 1% SN iR B A 49
contract (Note i) (K a%ii) 405 = - =
405 434 - -
Derivative financial liabilities TEcmas
Structured foreign currency forward 4518 14 SN = HR A 49
contract (Note ii) (Kt azii) - — - 455
Notes: Haz -
@iy  Foreign currency forward contracts ) HNEREIAY

AEEFAZIIELIBEN K
RNEPESERGHRIEOT

The amount represents the fair value of foreign currency forward
contracts held by the Group with terms stated as follows:

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rate
EEREH BE A Hia®
As at 31 December 2012 A2012512831H USD vs RMB
EeHARY
Sell USD500,000 & 500,000 7T 9.1.2013 1:6.344
Sell USD500,000 J4500,0002 7T 19.2.2013 1:6.348
Sell USD500,000 J4500,0002 7T 11.3.2013 1:6.351
Sell USD500,000 J4500,0002 7T 9.42013 1:6.353
Sell USD500,000 J4500,0002 7T 9.5.2013 1:6.355
Sell USD500,000 500,000 7T 10.6.2013 1:6.358
Sell USD500,000 500,000 7T 9.7.2013 1:6.360
Sell USD500,000 500,000 7T 9.8.2013 1:6.362
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Notes: (continued)
(i)  Structured foreign currency forward contract

At 31 December 2013, the notional amount of structured
foreign currency forward contract amounted to USD1,000,000
with 24 valuation dates from 3 January 2012 to 3 December
2014 with settlement dates from 7 January 2012 to 5
December 2014. The expiry date of the contract is 3 December
2014.

On each valuation date, if the USD/RMB spot rate with reference
to Reuters page CNHFIXO1 as determined by a pre-agreed
calculation agent (the “Spot Rate”) pursuant to the structured
foreign currency forward contract, is higher than a strike rate at
USD1:RMB6.5 (the “Strike Rate”), the Group will be obliged to
sell the notional amount of USD1,000,000 at the Strike Rate
and thus the Group may suffer a loss. If the Spot Rate is less
than the Strike Rate, the Group will receive a pre-determined
amount of RMB28,800.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. The deposits carry prevailing market interest
rates which range from 0.01% to 0.35% (2012: 0.05% to
1.02%) per annum.

The following amounts of bank and cash are denominated in
the foreign currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities.

Euro BX 7T
RMB AR
HK dollars BT

Hret - ()
(i) HEBUINEEREH

MR2013F 128318 & & 1% 4
IR & 4 H) & 3% 18 /1,000,000
Eo0c 24@MEE B N F2012F1
A3H £2014F12A3H #£ &
H Al F2012F1A78 £2014
F12A5B -6 EMBEBA
2014 12H3H °

RE—HmERD MEREGERE T
INERBIAE N B TBEEREER
BRERBEHCNHFXOIEEEF
WETHAREIBER(HRE
BX)aRITFEEXRIZETRLA
R¥es5m([fTEEX]) - AJARE
EEEFRITFERLHERRE
1,000,000 7T + #h 2 £ @ 7] A¢
BEB MEREEXRERITE
Ex. AAEEBKRELET
K& B AR 28,8007 °

RTERRRSBEAEERFE
ZBEeRREXNAIMEA KL RIE
ARz RHRITER - ZETFN
W% FHFE E0.01%ZE035%
(2012 : 0.05% % 1.02%) 5T & °

ATHEARE S EHRY L EHE
B 10 B8 & 3 45 15 M LA SN A0 B R D
B o

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET
301 298
3,241 6,924
13,343 25,060

16,885 32,282
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Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average
credit period obtained for trade purchases is 7 to 60 days.

Included in trade and other payables are trade and bills
payables of HK$67,701,000 (2012: HK$56,941,000). The
aged analysis of trade and bills payables at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

Not exceeding 30 days T E30K
31-60 days 31260K
61-90 days 61E90K
Over 90 days 90K A £
Other payables H i JE T 3K
Accrued salary FEfTEr &
Accrued bonus JE T TEAL
Other accrued expenses Htt g8 mA

The following amounts of trade and other payables are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entities.

RMB AR #&
HK dollars BT

ENESZREMRAETEZREE
SBEMFERXKAZ AT
H-BEHBE2FHREMATE
60K °

ERESREMREBEENZ
% X T 467,701,000/ JT (2012 :
56,941,000 7T) * ENE 5 FIER
MEMRZERSTAOT :

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRERT TETT
31,763 34,517
26,233 17,692
3,489 2,693
6,216 2,039
67,701 56,941
400 2,205
19,336 14914
8,085 6,528
8,525 11,224
104,047 91,812

UTERNEZERREEMRIES
A 48 8 &= [ {8 88 &9 Th 5E & & LA Sh
ME¥LHK-

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
16,242 17,162
33,883 37,951

50,125 55,113
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Capital Nation Investments Limited
("Capital Nation”)

Capital Nation is beneficially owned and controlled by Ms. Lee
Rosanna Man Lai who is the daughter of Mr. Lee, the controlling
shareholder of the Company's ultimate holding company, Full
Gold.

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on
demand and aged within 60 days.

Bank loans RITE N
Bank import loans RITAABRK
Analysed as: DR
Unsecured EE

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had available banking
facilities of approximately HK$439,490,000 (2012:
HK$440,198,000) of which HK$17,329,000 (2012:
HK$50,000,000) was utilised.

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRER TAET
263 311

Capital Nation i & A & & & #5F IR &~
AlFull Goldz ERRRF L E 2 K
REXBRLTERER RBRE-

ERFELEERR THE FE
ZREE MR B60KA °

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
- 50,000
17,329 -
17,329 50,000
17,329 50,000

MR2013F12 8318 A& E [ A
2 SRAT 8 FA1E B 88 #9439,490,0007%
75 (2012 : 440,198,000/ 7T) » H &
17,329,000 7T (2012 : 50,000,000
BT)BEENA -
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All of the Group's borrowings are variable rate borrowings as at
31 December 2013 and 2012.

The ranges of effective interest rates per annum on the Group's RKEBBEXK
borrowings are as follows: T
2013
Effective interest rate: BEEREF*E Higher of 1.75% over
Variable-rate borrowings FRMER the Hong Kong

The following amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant

group entities.

SEMAER

Interbank Offered rates
(“HIBOR") or the bank’s
cost of funds
EBEEFKEN1.75%
RB|ITESHAE
Z2BaEARE

AEEBRENBRBEERHELER

SIHESNZ SRITIER 2T ¢

MR20134F &2012F12A318 » K
B EZBER -

Z B F R R g E 0

2012

2% over HIBOR

BB
[B 2 7 B 102%

R

HK dollars BT

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TR

17,329 50,000
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The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised and movement thereon during the current and prior
reporting periods.

At 1 January 2012
Charge to profit or loss

M2012F1A1R
FFAEZE

At 31 December 2012
Charge to profit or loss AR

At 31 December 2013

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

EIETR IR B R

EEFAEE

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unutilised tax
losses of HK$971,000 (2012: HK$1,670,000) available to
offset against future profits. Unused tax losses of HK$100,000 (at
the time of deregistration) was related to a subsidiary which
was deregistered in current year. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future taxable profit streams. Tax losses of
HK$971,000 (2012: HK$1,670,000) may be carried forward
indefinitely.

M2012F12A31H

R2013412831H

AREERBARESHECHER
TEELEHBEABEREERES
A a0 T o

Accelerated
(accounting)
tax
depreciation
EREBERTE
HK$'000
FHT

16

256

272
239

511

ERMKER BEHBELERINT
LN

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FEL
511 281

- ©
511 272

RBEBRER AEEHAKREHRE
AAERMN KRR G 2 HE
B 18 A&971,0007 JT(20124 :
1,670,000 7T o A & F & 18 &5 18
100,000 7T (A #0455 1 s ) £
Bt B8 X B 5 A A A B O BEE e A o
A ARRERM S Ra T &
B BRI EEREL
TIEE E - FIEE 18 /£971,0007% 7T
(20124F : 1,670,000 7T ) A £E R B 4%
@ro
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Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiary amounting to
HK$2,853,000 (2012: HK$2,634,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: BREBIAETZ
B
Authorised: ERE
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 and #2012 1A 18 -
31 December 2013 2012 12R31 R
K2013%12A31H
Issued and fully paid: BIRER
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 and 7201241518 ¢
31 December 2013 2012412 431 H

K 201312831 H

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 18 May 2011 for
the purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
persons. The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years from adoption of such scheme and will expire on 17 May
2021.

BHEAEAREMBECEMER
A #£2008F 1 A1 FEIE R
MBARERZKEHYFEHME
RETEH - AR AN 5 B B 4045 H
CERUEZEORME TREE
BN A R RG] e g e
WA A B HRRLEREGP
B E AW B AR TE S R EF
$£2,853,0007% 7t (2012 : 2,634,000
BTSRRI EEAIRECHIE
B

Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
ZBERMOEE o]
HK$'000
FET
5,000,000,000 500,000
825,000,000 82,500

RNARIBIE —IBER2011465H18
BHRBZAZER DERMABRES
Z([&8])) UEBEEREEA
T o GBI ERMNEIOFERAER - I
202195817 H @ °
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Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company
could at their discretion grant options to (i) any director,
employee or consultant of the Company or a company in
which the Company holds an equity interest or a subsidiary of
such company (“Affiliate”); or (i) any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include any director, employee or
consultant of the Company or an Affiliate; or (i) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee or consultant of
the Company or an Affiliate; or (iv) any customer, supplier or
adviser as may be determined by the directors of the Company
from time to time to subscribe for the shares of the Company.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant. The maximum number of shares of the Company in
respect of which options might be granted under the Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company any point in time. The maximum number of the
shares of the Company in respect of which options might be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue on the last
date of such 12-month period unless approval of the
shareholders of the Company was obtained in accordance with
the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

Options may be exercised during such period (including the
minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held
before it could be exercised) as may be determined by the
directors of the Company (which shall be less than ten years
from the date of issue of the relevant option). Options may be
granted without initial payment. The exercise price was equal to
the highest of (i) nominal value of the shares of the Company; (ii)
the closing price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets on the date of the grant of the options;
and (iii) the average closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
options.

No share options were granted since the adoption.

REFE ARREFE(ES
gNARBEROGAEE NEBEE
ERAERZ AAHZ R EZH
BAR([MERRZEMES -
BEHER: HMXBABRELAE
B EMBARZEMNES ER
KB 2 I 2 REF 2i)m
REFBXEBB AR ZEMNES
BEEXBEAEREAZIAE: %
VAEFERNTRREZEME
P HEmEERTRERENLR
BARRAIMRD -

ERTZBERELARERARE
A2V RAEM - BEREE SR
h2BIRER SR 2BRDER &
TR EEs TEEBARALE
BITIRAN 2 10% ° BRIERZE TR
AIES AR BBIRILE - T RIRE
1218 A B A& T EAE R A £
ZEREzESERNEE  THE
BRZNEAREZ&ZE BB
BATRAD 2 1% °

BREIREFTEBETZABRY
A(ZMESHETABRRER
P10 A W BEBRER T1TE
RIMARAEZRERR(OAE)) R
1T BB A m] #2328 1 th A HAMY
RZBERTRY - YRR T =18
RZEREERITEEROBRNZ
E{E : (RO RE L ERES BB
R E®RERMANZBRKE
B R@ipmNERE R L B HA
SERXZAEBIXMzEARER
P52 PR HE -

BRMBEE TERBASIROE
P HE o
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The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid
under operating leases in respect of
office premises during the year

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth year inclusive REZZERFNA

Operating lease payments represent rentals for the Company's
office. The lease is for a term of two years and rental is fixed
throughout the lease period.

FRAERPRIEYE
ME 2 HEBRER K

SEAEBEA
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET
2,084 2,052

MR K - 7S o B BT 7 B S 4E
SR 2 KRR ERE N RAE
o

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET THAT

2,537 2,112

5,074 105

7,611 2,217

REHENKEARAPARE
He HEZVFHOEBAME B
& REME %A ZIEE KRR

BT -

Capital expenditure contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
ERIERRHABEHEEA
R Z BN
RNEMF  BE REE
253 -
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Defined benefit scheme

The Group is a member of a defined benefit scheme which
was open to qualified employees of the Group's subsidiaries. In
December 2000, all the then existing members of the defined
benefit scheme were enrolled into the MPF Scheme and their
accrued benefits for the past services under the defined benefit
scheme were frozen as at 30 November 2000. The defined
benefit scheme was closed to new employees from December
2000 onwards.

Under the defined benefit scheme, employees are entitled to
retirement benefits varying between 0 and 100% of their salary
as at 30 November 2000 multiplied by the pensionable service
up to 30 November 2000 on attainment of a retirement age of
55. No other post-retirement benefits are provided.

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as
investment risk and interest rate risk.

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is
calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to the
yields of the Hong Kong Government Exchange Fund Notes; if
the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan
deficit.

FE R &5 5 &

REBR—BATEMEE 2K
B ZiglZEREERRIZAER
BB MR > B2000F 12 A » REF
ﬁ?&%ﬁﬂ”‘%ZFﬁﬁﬁXaEﬁ.ﬁam
AchfEEst8 HRREFSETE
T R® 2 21 F %= 2 %2000
F1 AR W RE - REF =5
B JRNEE2000F 12 AR TN BE S H
EEMA -

BEAENRTTE - EERFESS
BRAR R 2 BB - AT UYCER 2 3R K48 I
T E R ER2000%11 8308 2
HBNZ0%ZE100%T 5% - WikNUE
Z2000F 11 A30H 1L 2 EFTE R
Ke2RBEFEE - RNREEW RIS
iR KIE AR T o

ZEtBlEAEEERAEERER - 1
BE R R & H) R E

R & E B

REMBFHEBBECREDZR
BEABRNIEESRBEZRGEXR
MRE 2 BB ERFFEH T8 &
EZEHERZL X HELE
Big e
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Defined benefit scheme (continued)
Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan
liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in
the return on the plan's debt investments.

The risk relating to benefits to be paid to the dependents of
plan members (widow and orphan benefits) is re-insured by an
external insurance company.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out
as at 31 December 2013 by Towers Watson Hong Kong
Limited. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, the
related current service cost and past service cost were
measured using the projected unit credit method.

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate 3 &

The actuarial valuation shows that the market value of plan
assets at 31 December 2013 was HK$10,186,000 (2012:
HK$9,699,000) and that the actuarial value of these assets
represented 162% (2012: 151%) of the benefits that were
accrued to members. The surplus at 31 December 2013 of
HK$3,886,000 (2012: HK$3,271,000) is to be cleared over
the estimated remaining service period of the current
membership of 5 years (2012: 6 years)

FRE R &3 5 & (8)

F £ fm B

BHEMEEREFSEMFEAE
Al ZHPBERFEBEBRE
Bl 7 2 38 = BB 1D K 55 o

BRERERERBCERKAMRE)
AN AR e [ B S BB LB A A
BEHMER-

FEIEERAENEEAERBEZ
E—Lﬁﬂ EETMTHEBEENE

BARARIRKR2013F 1243181k
Hj FEfh o RERmAPEIRE - HEH
zfﬁﬂjﬁ&ﬁkﬁﬁzm&iﬂﬁﬁﬁkiﬁﬁ
THER TR BAL A EIEE

FIRAZEERERKWT :
2013 2012
Per annum Per annum
2 %
0.7% 0.2%
BEMB T E & ER2013

F12H31H 2z ™ & /10,186,000
7 70 (2012 : 9,699,000 7T ) M
ZEAECREBEDHEERG
2K B 1B ﬁ‘ﬂﬁﬁZ162%(20125
151%) = 201312 A31H 2 & %
#3,886,000/%8 7T (2012 : 3,271,000
B BREBEAEEEMASF (2012 :
NE)HETRIAREFERANLEE -
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Defined benefit scheme (continued)

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of
these defined benefit plans are as follows.

REF =5 & (&)

ReEEPaTEIAZEBZER
EMamFFERBEMT -

Year ended Year ended
31.12.2013 31.12.2012
BZE20135F & E20124

12A31H 12H31H

LEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(restated)
(f&5)
Net interest income FFE WA 6 -
Component of defined benefit assets R HP#R 2 R E NS
recognised in profit or loss BEMAKSH 6 =
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit R EFREEFRE 2
assets: B E
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts st E|EE LR (T BIEE
included in net interest expense) AR B FEHRIE) 474 462
Actuarial gains B8 Wi 135 —
Components of defined benefit assets PE 2 T U 2= R
recognised in other comprehensive income 5 & Fl| 25 & 7 42 A BF 609 462
Total Bt 615 462
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Defined benefit scheme (continued)

The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the Group's obligation in respect of its
defined benefit retirement benefit plan is as follows:

Present value of funded defined T F 2 A
benefit obligations RIBEZBE
Fair value of plan assets FEEEZ
NTFEE
Defined benefit asset FE N g F

Movements in the present value of the funded defined benefit
obligations in the current year were as follows:

Opening balance HA¥) 48R
Interest cost A B AR
Actuarial gains BE W=

Closing balance HIR &R

FRE R &3 5 & (8)

BEIAZEMBMRAKRFTAEE
R FE M 25 R K48 A RF 8 2 AR

FREE2BRBWOT :
31.12.2013 31.12.2012 1.1.2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET FET
(restated) (restated)

(BE75) €<3-27))

6,300 6,428 6,428
(10,186) (9,699) (9,237)
(3.886) (3.271) (2,809)

FAREMEAEREZEHOT

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
6,428 6,428

7 —_

(135) -
6,300 6,428
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Defined benefit scheme (continued)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current

year were as follows:

Opening balance B AR
Interest income A B A
Remeasurement gain: BT EWE
Return on plan assets & O #y
Closing balance HIR 48R

The major categories of plan assets at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Debt instruments
Cash

The plan assets do not include any equity shares in the

Company or property held by the Group.

FREF =5 & (&)

FAFEEEATFEEZFHAOT :

2013
HK$'000
THERT

9,699

13

474

10,186

2012
HK$'000
FHT
(restated)
(f &%)

9,237

462
9,699

AEBECEEDERBRERRK

E5mTE

Fair value of plan assets

AEEECAYE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET
10,186 9,602
- 97
10,186 9,699

AEEECAFEELERE AN
ARAZCBRABRBZXAEEFE Z

Y
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Defined benefit scheme (continued)

The history of experience adjustments is as follows:

2013
HK$'000
FTHER
Present value of defined
benefit obligations AREMNmAPERE 6,300
Fair value of plan assets TEIEECATE (10,186)
Surplus AR (3,886)
Actuarial gains on plan
liabilities TRl aERE RS 135
Actuarial gains on plan assets &t | & E 15 & Wz -
Defined contribution scheme

The Group also operates the MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
Group contributes monthly the lower of HK$1,250 or 5% of
the relevant monthly payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees. The employees of the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
government of the PRC. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2013F 12 31 H L FE

RERNZE (E)
BERABRERAT
2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FART TFAERT TFTAERT
6428 6428 7480 8,194
(9,699) (9,237) (9,705)  (9,936)
(3271)  (2,809) (2,225) (1,742)
= 132 — —
(185) (174  (195) (84)
REMAGE

REBAMABECERNEER L —HER
Beitdlc ZFE 2 EERAEB B
ENHAFE ULAITALZN - AEH
MAEESTEERFI2508TBEBE
BB KR 250 (AKIKE &%) Mg
BZHALEER AEE 2+ KB
RRAIZEEVYATFRHRFNERE 2 HER
KEFMGTE Z2KE  ZEFEKE R R
BEFWNAZI2ETAED LRAEBIKET
BN AE B AR RIKEF TS
ZEERELIEE ZHRK -
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Save as the balance with a related party as disclosed in note BrBsE22 FT W R RE B 7 A 6R 00 - K
22, the Group had related party transactions during the year as EERFRAMETZIEAER S I
follows: N
Name of related party  Relationship Nature of transactions 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEL AR B & XEMHE 2013 2012
THERT FAT
Lee & Man (International) A company beneficially Management fee income 535 16
Investment Limited owned and controlled received
by Mr. Lee
BX(BER)KRERR BHEEEERHESR EKRERE
NG & | /N
Capital Nation A company beneficially Corrugated cardboard and 1,501 1,991
owned and controlled carton boxes purchased

by Ms. Lee Rosanna Man
Lai, a daughter of Mr. Lee
MEEEZRR BERGER AN
FXBULITERESR
KyEH 2 A E)

Lee & Man Realty A company beneficially Licence fee paid 1,943 1,943
Investment Limited owned and controlled
by Mr. Lee
BXBEXARAA HEEEERHESR EfNERER
S E AN
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EERHEMTIETEEXRERNF
management during the year was as follows: NzBEm T :
2013 2012
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Short-term employee benefits HEETIRA 7,236 6,885
Post-employment benefits BRBIwEF 120 110

7,356 6,995
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, purchases of
property, plant and equipment of HK$1,738,000 were settled
through transfer of deposits paid.

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December

2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Name of company

REEE

Directly owned

HEER

Lee & Man Development
Company Limited
BXERABRALQA

Indirectly owned
BEES

Catini Bags (Hong Kong)
Limited®

Deluxe Handbag Manufacturing

Company Limited
SERFRBBEAA

Dongguan Deluxe Handbag
Manufacturing Limited* (Note)

REERFRERAA
(HtzE)

Dongguan Lee Wai Handbag

Co. Ltd* (Note)

RENEFRERAR
(Ktat)

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment
REERA®
R

BVI
15 September 1992
KEBHEBARES
19929 H15H

Hong Kong

7 November 2001
BB

2001411 A7H

Hong Kong

22 February 2012
BB

201292 H22H

PRC

11 January 2012
H

20121 RA11H

PRC
25 September 2009

&
200949 A 25H

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
ERITREE
BRAEREAR

Ordinary US$90

@A 903E T

Ordinary HK$2

T2 T

Ordinary HK$1

TR B T

Paid-in capital
HK$1,000,000

ERER
1,000,000/ JT

Registered and
paid-in capital
HK$6,000,000

S e B WA AR
6,000,0007% 7T

#H Z=20124 128318 1IF F &
BEWE BREEREZES A
1,738,000 = A A FE M E T
FIEE A o

KA BB A B R20134F K£2012
FI2A3THZFHBOT ¢

Attributable

equity

interest held
by the Group

REFFRZ BN

MRAS S

2013

100%

100%

100%

100%

2012

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

EEEHK

Investment holding

BEER

Dormant

TERAR

Investment holding

Manufacture and
sale of handbags
BERIEEFH

Manufacture and
sale of handbags

HERHEEFR
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Name of company

NCIREE

Indirectly owned (continued)

MEES (H)

Lee & Man Company Limited

BIXFTTERAR

Lee & Man Handbag
(Thailand) Company Limited

Lee & Man Handbag
Manufacturing Company
Limited

BYFRBERRAT

Lee & Man Luggage
Manufacturing Company
Limited®

BXRITEBRA R

Lee & Man Management
Company Limited

BXEEARRAF

Lee Wai Handbag
Manufacturing Company
Limited

MEFRBEERA AR

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment
BB AE
M AR L

Hong Kong
21 November 1978

BB
19784 11 A21H

Thailand

11 November 1997
ZH

199711 A11H

Hong Kong
20 August 1976

o
19768 A20H

Hong Kong
25 June 1992

BB
199246 H25H

Hong Kong
24 November 1992

BB
1992411 A24H

Hong Kong
23 March 2009

BB
200943 A23 H

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/

registered capital

ERITRAZ
A EME R

Ordinary
HK$1,000,000
Non-voting deferred
HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

EREREL
f% 13 1,000,000
BT

Ordinary
Baht 30,000,000
Baht 30,000,000

Ordinary
HK$10,000
Non-voting deferred
HK$500,000
AR
10,0007 7T
BERERET
P& 17 500,000
BT

Ordinary HK$2

TR 2B T

Ordinary HK$2

il

W27 T

Ordinary HK$1

T

Attributable
equity

interest held
by the Group
AEEFEZERL

LhE
2013 2012

100% 100%

100% 100%
100%

100%

- 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

Principal activities

TEXEH

Manufacture and
sale of handbags

ﬁlqj

P

RHEFR

[of

Property holding in
Thailand
ENEIESFER/ES

Manufacture and
sale of handbags

2,% N

i
g

KIHEFR

ot

Dormant

TEBA

Provision of
management
and administration
services
REEERITHR
Pk 7%

Investment holding

KEEK

Sy
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Name of company

NCIR=T

Indirectly owned (continued)

MEES (8

Pernelle Development
Company Limited

Pernelle Handbag Company
Limited
BRFRERAA]

Pernelle International Company
Limited

ARERENERAT FA
201349 H 16 H
Well Known Associates BVI
Limited® 2 August 2001
REERRES
20018 H2H
* English name for identification purposes only.

Note: The companies are registered in the form of wholly-owned

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment
By EER A,
AR AL

BVI
8 August 2013
RBHEBARES
201348 H8H

Hong Kong

16 September 2013

i

20139 H 16 H

Hong Kong

16 September 2013

This company was deregistered during the year.

foreign investment enterprises.

The deferred shares of the above entities practically carry no
rights to participate in profits or surplus assets or to receive
notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of the
respective companies or to participate in any distribution on

winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year, or at any time during the year.

Issued and Attributable
fully paid equity
share capital/ interest held
registered capital by the Group
ERTREE AEEREZEMNG
[ 31ty N RAfE R
2013 2012
Ordinary US$90 100% —
LB A 903E T
Ordinary 100% =
HK$10,000,000
10,000,0007% 7T
Ordinary 100% —
HK$10,000,000
EE
10,000,0007% 7T
Ordinary US$1 —  100%

LA 13ETT

Principal activities

EEEHK

Investment holding

REEK

Dormant

A BA A

Dormant

AEBA A

Investment holding

BREZR

Y ORXAREMRE
* ZRRIRAE E R

FEAM

i °

Kz ZERAER

B B8 X B 20 F AR

SN BE B ER R

A ST B {0 3 4 A F) 2 8 5 K O A
SEREEXRNRESERLAME
AlERAGzcBEHIEFEARNG K
RELREXRZ2EBFREZEMD

3 F A {E ] B A

BECAAERD ZEFES -
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The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concemn while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank borrowings disclosed in note 23, net of bank
balances and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as issue of new debts.

34a. Categories of financial instruments

AEEETEAER  ABRAE
TS E R
5 3B M AL B 75 B MR AN 4 4 F
BB RERS A - AEEHEE
HWEE EFEERETE -

AEENEAGRERFAEH
REME23FEHBRRITERRK
R ROBITET) RARRER
FREAREEZ(BIERTRA
REBER) -

AREAEERFBEEERHNER
RE-ERREBEHNNEY EF
EEBEAKRARZEEARNME
MRER REESNESE A5E
B BRI BITH AR BT
MENATEEERERRE-

34a. R THEHZE35

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Financial assets ZHEE
Loans and receivables (including cash ERRERZRIE (BRI
and cash equivalents) RehRE&ZEHEEER) 160,863 190,593
Derivative financial instruments MESMIT A 405 434
Financial liabilities eHEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RBHEKANEHBE 104,664 109,457
Derivative financial instruments eI HE - 455

e
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34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, bank balances, trade and other
payables, derivative financial instruments, amount due to
a related company and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
() Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the
PRC and the exposure in exchange rate risks mainly
arises from fluctuations of foreign currencies,
including Euro, HK dollars and RMB against the
functional currency of the relevant group entities.
Material transactions and balances that are not
denominated in the functional currency of the
relevant entities give rise to foreign currency
exposure as follows:

(i) Euro — in terms of revenue and bank
balances

(i)  HK dollars and RMB — in terms of expenses,
bank balances, capital expenditure and bank
borrowings

Exchange rate fluctuations and market trend have
always been the concern of the Group. As HK
dollars are linked with US dollars, the Group does
not have material exchange risk on this currency
pair.

34b. X EMREEEERBEK

AEBZIZESRMIAR
EREKE Z R EMKE - R
THES ENESZREMRK
B THEERIA EBNEE
NBERBARBITER - %ZF
T B T A 1570 A8 B MY R
B-2EZemIANHEER
LEETSAREERR K
MERR)  EERR MRS
B R K- XX &0 (A
BEZEERBRIBKR - EEE
EEREEZEFRAR  AWE
REEFRAEBBRIEE Z
I ©

% m B
() E%ER

AEEXERFBLRT
BEEX% EXRR
=R B o e
M BB EX RSP
EX BREEIT AT
MARMESE - AN
EXHEEELRELR
R E AR S MR
T

() BT —-RFEWA
K ARAT 4 B

oW

(i) BATLTEARE-R
B RIT&EH
BARM X RIRTT

3%

ANE B — [ B [ XK
BLRMEBEE - aNE
TTHEEXTHE AEE
RZEB LI EE RN
BE R o
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34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

®

Currency risk (continued)

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets
and monetary liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amount of the Group’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities (excluding those in HK dollars
for entities with US dollars as functional currency)
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities
are as follows:

Monetary assets EWEE
Euro B 7T
RMB AR
Monetary liabilities EWaE
Euro B 7T
RMB AR

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to
a 5% (2012: 5%) increase and decrease in the
functional currency of the relevant group entities
against the above foreign currencies. 5% (2012: 5%)
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates.

34b. K ERBREEBEBEER K E
(#&)

4% B ()
() EERREE)

FNTENEEEEER
E¥aE

R EHK K’EIF%
ENHEBEERBNEER
JIEINCEREEREA
BAEBIEMED
EEBAXESZERKR
Sh) - HREREET ¢

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRER TAET
301 298
2,026 7,268
75 -
33,909 17,582

SRS T

Ti‘%%i‘ﬁ$’ilﬁﬁ%§

EER s HEEER
Lz_ﬁﬁéﬁl\%t%&T
%500 (2012 : 5%) H) &
BXJE ° 500(2012 : 5%) &
HABEZEEABIE
I oS [ B B £K A A B
RELE BREREEM
HSNEETE Ry & 12 7] B
B EL BT -
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34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(1) Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
other than those denominated in HK dollars but
held by entities whose functional currency is US
dollars because HK dollars are linked to US dollars.
A strengthening of the above foreign currencies
against the functional currency of the relevant
group entities would give rise to the following
impact to post-tax profit for the year and vice versa.

4b. K EBREEBEEHERKE

()

4% B ()

@

Monetary assets and liabilities: E¥EERBE:
Increase (decrease) on post-tax G 2 bR B 12 05 A5 AN
profit for the year ORL2)
— Euro — BT
—RMB —AR%

BEER (&

SRS (E)

BRESMABEER
RONEETENRENE
®EB(BITAHENRKR
BENEERIN  EIhEE
ERARET ARAETT
T8 - B Lt sh
KRS AHEEEEREDN

N ERERE §E
7N 6 B BR B AR g A
BTRATEE RZT
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
10 14

(1,463) (473)
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34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

®

Currency risk (continued)
Derivative financial instruments

During the year, the Group has entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts and a structured
foreign currency forward contract with banks to
reduce its exposure to currency fluctuations risk of
RMB against USD. These derivatives are not
accounted for under hedge accounting. The Group
is required to estimate the fair value of these
derivative financial instruments at the end of the
reporting period, which therefore exposed the
Group to foreign currency risk.

Sensitivity analysis

If the forward exchange rate of RMB against USD
had been 5% higher/lower while all other input
variables of the valuation models were held
constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year
would increase (decrease) as follows:

Higher by 5% EFA5%
Derivative financial instruments

Lower by 5% T B 5%
Derivative financial instruments

TEemT A

TEE®mMI A

34b. K ERBREEBEBEER K E

()

4% B ()

0]

E¥ER(E)

PTESMIT A

AEBEFAD RIRITA]
TEZDINEERMENR
—IEBEINEERS
o UBIEEARE N
ETHER RIS ER -
ZEMETAMERY
HERTAI R AR H
BARBERRGEFZF
MTESMIANRTF
B A EASER
e 1 L i

HREE DN

fME ARBHLETHE
HARE & EF+ T B 5% -
mEERE 2MAEM
AR AERESTE
AIRNEEBZFREERR
i A3 0 O ) a0k

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET

27 2,144

27 (1,803)
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34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risks mainly
relate to its variable rate borrowings (see note 23
for details of these borrowings). The Group’s bank
balances also have exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The directors
consider the Group's exposure to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to its short term fixed-rate bank
deposits is not significant as interest bearing bank
balances are within short maturity periods.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy in relation to fair value interest rate
risks. The directors monitor the Group's exposure
on an ongoing basis and will consider hedging
interest rate risk should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
on its variable rate borrowings and bank balances
at the end of the reporting period and the
stipulated change taking place at the beginning of
the financial year and held constant throughout
both years in the case of instruments that have
floating rates. 10 basis points and 50 basis points
(2012: 10 basis points and 50 basis points)
increase or decrease are used by the management
for the assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates of variable rate bank
balances and variable rate borrowings, respectively.

34b.

BEERBEEEERBER
()

i 15 & B (&)
(i) FEE

AEBZHEESRNER
S F B RN IEITIERM
EEBF B (ERFRE
AW E23) MEEZ
RITHERNMERITH S
MEEBmMEBDERS
MM ERBRELE AR
REZEERAAEEAEY
ZAFEMERERNE
AR 1T E BT AR &
R TREE - BA%
SHBRITEBHINE
HA B 8 -

AL B B AL (LA &
HOFEMEE RO F
REFRE NAFE
EREENASEE S
o | <9 N A B
BHERKE R =E
K o

UMD T

LA S B o AT = IR OZ
BRITERRF RN @
&= B AR #Y ) = = B i 2
F-BRRIAEFERZE
Fl= . QBERTBF
ERpEZ . RlEEE
BRI & - & M EF
EHFETE 10K R
504 25 (2012 : 10E &
SOEE) AL R EEIEE
2RI F B R R AR AT
FREFBFERT
BREBBENEEFA
LR ET (IR o
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34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates had been 10 (2012: 10) basis
points higher or lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 December 2013 would increase or
decrease by HK$19,000 (2012: HK$18,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate bank balances.

If interest rates had been 50 (2012: 50) basis
points higher or lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 December 2013 would decrease or
increase by HK$79,000 (2012: HK$299,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

34b. K ERBREEBEBEER K E

()

4% B ()

(i)

SN AC- )

RS (B)

fisf | 3= 52 10 =% E 210
1 £ 25 (2012 : 101&
B BmmAHMA
£ B #H =22013F12 A8
31 B IEFE 2 %
hn sk 2> 919,000 7T
(2012 : 18,0003 7T ) -
R R 1T 45 BR BT A5 0F B
FEMmSAEETDEF
KR o

fisf | 3 52 10 =% @ 250
18 £ 2 2 (2012 : 501
B BmmAHEMA
& B #H =2013F12A8
31 B IEFE 2R
4> 5k 18 10 979,000 T
(2012 : 299,000 7T) °
B R RITE R EH
FEMmSAEETEF
KR e
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34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’'s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties provided by the Group is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group is also exposed to concentration of
credit risk as a substantial portion of its sales is generated
from a limited number of customers. At 31 December
2013, the top five customers of the Group accounted for
about 35% (2012: 60%) of the Group's trade
receivables.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

4b. K EBREEBEEHERKE

()

=EERE

MR2013F 124310 » A& B
H ¥ 5 AREERBITE M &
BB GREEERRBRRK
BREMBREHINSE
BReMEEMEREHEMAE - A
RAEBASBMHESKRAR
EREFEA ASEER
HEESEP ZRB - R2013
F12A318 £ @885 A
& P Ak FE URBR 3Kk 4B BE 4935%
(2012 : 60%) °

RBEERRBEERE K
SEEREEEZE—HAR
BEEEGEERE FEEH
Rk EMEREANUBERD
REUEE RAETTEH WD E
B I REBRE ER
TR SRBNESE
B2 AR E SRR AR
AR E & R AR L R SR E
BER -BUEME  ARAIES
REBARAZEERBRE X
e P A o

AEBZRITERZEER
SER BRI AFER
BIEEFNRZRT -
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34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 3b. ¥ KRB EEBBERBK

(continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuation in cash flows. The Group also has available
banking facilities (note 23) to meet its short-term working
capital requirements. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensure compliance
with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent the interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the
end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
contractual net cash (inflows) and outflows on derivative
instruments that settle on a net basis. The liquidity
analysis for the Group's derivative financial instruments
are prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management consider that the contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash
flows of derivatives.

()

B &2 E

EEEBERDHESRARE X
SEEARRBERERR
RAMBKRESRESEEER
KE - BAREEMNERZE
REESTRERESRE R
T E - AEEBERREA
BAZRITEREERE (M
) NENEHESRTRK B
1P fE BE PR SR 1T B A 5 A AR
AREREBTERRZL -

TRANAKEFETLES R
BENRTAOIHA &
RTBEBEAEE A LR E K
EFRNREEHEREEN
AUBBRBAERERE - Hit
ETEERABZANHAR
EEEMNEXBHFAE %
RNEFERRE 2RSSR
E-NHEHR KiEELH
MERBFEH X MHEKR
BRESHARENEGHE -

BEAN s TREI A E AT
AERIANRBESN-
HRBAFHEEEGENIT
AEMTANKBREGOR
ORA) B #58 - AEE
TEEMIARSESN
REGOIHBERE WD
HREREERAANIHA
HEBOTETARSRNE
EEERE -
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34b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Weighted
average On
effective demand
interest  or 0-30

rate days
MEFY EERZ
BEEAE  0-30K
% HK$'000
FTERT
As at 31 December 2013 720135
12A31H
Non-derivative financial F{T4£¢@EE
liabilities
Non-interest bearing ELSAE - 51,256
Variable interest rate EEETHA
instruments 1.97 17,357
68,613
Weighted
average On

effective  demand
interest  or 0-30
rate days
ElRAE  0-30K

%  HK$000
FHET
As at 31 December 2012 20124
12A31H
Non-derivative financial FT4£¢REE
liabilities
Non-interest bearing ELSAE - 35730
Variable interest EEETHE
rate instruments 223 50,092
85,822
Derivative financial fTEeRmBE
liabilities-net - FERK
settlement
Foreign exchange forward ~ SME i& 55
contracts a4 (36)

31-60
days

31-60 X

HK$'000
TER

26,374

26,374

31-60
days

31-60K
HK$'000
FET

20,007

20,007

(36)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at

the end of the reporting period.

4b. K ERBREEEHERKE

(&)

MEEZ m A ()
Total
61-90  91-365 Over undiscounted
days days 365days  cash flows
ki) RER
61-90 K 91-365XK 365X BeR
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TExT THEx FET
3,456 6,140 109 87,335
- - - 17,357
3,456 6,140 109 104,692
Total
61-90 91-365 Over  undiscounted
days days 365 days cash flows
B RER
61-90K 91-365K 365K Ben
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET TER THET
2212 1273 235 59,457
= = = 50,092
2212 1,273 235 109,549
(36) (162) 725 455

Carrying
amount

fREE
HK$'000
TER

87,335

17,329

104,664

Carrying
amount

fREE

HK$'000
TET

59,457

50,000

109,457

455

fWEFERBHEHREENMEME
Bl AIGFALXCETTESRABES

TAAENEMNEBEN THE -
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34c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and

financial liabilities.

0)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Some of the Company's financial assets and
financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The following table

these financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used).

Financial assets/
financial liabilities

LREE SHMERE AEER
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
(1) Foreign currency forward ~ Nil Assets —
contracts classified as
derivative financial
instruments in the
consolidated statement of
financial position
() EEREEM KRR & BE-
PROBERITESRMT 434,000
AMINESREIER BT
(2) Structured foreign Assets — Liabilities —

currency forward contract
classified as derivative
financial instruments in
the consolidated
statement of financial

position

Q) EMHEEMBMARE BE- BE-
FEABAITESRT 405000
AEMEBEIINSRESE BT BT

#

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in
both years.

Fair value as at

HK$434,000

HK$405,000  HK$455,000

455,000

gives information about how the fair values of

Fair value
hierarchy
AEERE

Level 2

ER

Level 2

ER

34c. TRTAZAFERE

AW R T AL B DR
FEFLREAERSMALR
B E R o

() AEESBEETAAE
BEFfENEREERS

BAEBNHQFE

RBEHR LHOEKE
TRMEELEBMARGETD
BAFEE TRE
HNMMETELERE
Eke@MABEIRAFE
MERERZMER
) ff B i & A B
®) e

Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)

RERTREEHARE

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward exchange rates (from
observable forward exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period) and contracted forward
rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit
risk of various counterparties.

BBEREM - REBEEFIELBR(RRE
HARABERNEIINERBRE) RETHDH
B ERMEARKRBE R - WA —Esk
HARMEBFEERBROL X 2RI -

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward exchange rates (from
observable forward exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period) and contracted forward
rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit
risk of various counterparties.

BRRER - BBEEPIIE L BRR(RRE
HRABENERIEL AT RBETHM
LR RMEETRRE SR - WA — @8
HRREEFEERBRNOLE R ZRRA -

RWAEFEA - /R IE R
7l P I AR o
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34c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

(ii)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (but fair value disclosures are required)

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding
derivative instruments) recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012, the fair value measurements of all derivative
financial instruments of the Group are categorised
into Level 2. The fair values of the financial assets
and financial liabilities included in the Level 2
category above have been determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the
most significant inputs being the discount rate that
reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

34c. SRITEZ A FEE(E)

(ii)

WIHRREHEEEUARA
BEAE(BEAFHR
AREERBE)IZEBE
EREBABIAANE
(=1

/Uﬂﬁi

EERE REHEKA
PN RSN T E
JERMEENESRAR
(TTETARINNERE
BEREEAFERS

M2013F 128318 &
2012F12A31H A& E
FTENMEEMI AN

“EH-BEHEL
ME2QERHNERMEE
RemBaBENAFER
BEERANETESR
RReRER ENTE
HAEITHETE - TEE
ANEEZHAERR
REERERBRRZ S E
FEARBOTERE -
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34d. Financial assets and financial liabilities subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to
an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that covers similar financial instruments,
irrespective of whether they are offset in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable

master netting arrangements and similar

agreements

As at 31 December 2013

Gross
amounts of
recognised
financial
Gross liabilities set
amounts of off in the
recognised consolidated
consolidated statement of
financial financial
assets position
REMK
ERARE MR T A
ERMEE CE &%
FERc) cRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Description it
Bank balances  $R7T#5%% 539 =
Derivatives PTET A 405 -

944

34d.

Net amounts
of financial
assets
presented in
the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position
=e

B AR R R A
23K
ERMEE
FE

HK$'000
FAT

539
405

944

BREE THATHAEEE
ZHERECUHBZERMEE
RemeE

TERABEZBEBERE Y RA
HITROAELFURER
UemTAZEUBREZE
MEERZREE THE
BRAKEZHEA MBI
KA -

BREHE THTREEH
ZHREUGEZZMEE

R2013F 12 A31H

Related amounts not set
off in the consolidated
statement of financial

position
ERREMBERRRA
K HRASEE
Cash
Financial collateral Net
instruments received amount
2 WA
SRMIAE REe&EHAM FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
— — 539
— — 405
= = 944

111



Lee & Man Handbags Holding Limited ¥ X F £ &£ & 45 iR 2 &

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2013F 12 31 H L FE

34d. Financial assets and financial liabilities subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements (continued)

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangements and similar

agreements (continued)

As at 31 December 2012

Gross amounts
of recognised

34d. S REH WHTHREEE
ZHEREUHBZEMEE
rE®mas (&)

B REHE - 0BT T
RHREUGEZETHEE
()

R2012F 12 A31H

Related amounts not set
off in the consolidated
statement of financial

financial Net amounts of position

liabilities set

financial assets I & WA 47 & B 75 ik L &

Gross amounts off in the presented in the NIKIE 2 HESHE
of recognised consolidated consolidated Cash
consolidated statement of statement of Financial collateral
financial assets financial position financial position  instruments received Net amount
ke B e %
BEEREA R T A R FR A
TREE AIREHEz 2R £ YR
R TRMAE BEFHE 2EIA ReEHm R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET FET FET FET FET
112 Description il
Bank balances  $R1T4E&R 15,899 - 15,899 (455) - 15,444
Derivatives PTETA 434 - 434 - - 434
16,333 = 16,333 (455) = 15,878
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34d. Financial assets and financial liabilities subject 34d. RIS THITHEEIEH
to offsetting, enforceable master netting ZHREUHBBZERMEE
arrangements and similar agreements (continued) kemaE(E)
Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, HBREH AHITELDIEH
enforceable master netting arrangements and RHEREUGHEZEHBEE
similar agreements
As at 31 December 2012 R2012F12H31H

Related amounts not
set off in the consolidated
Gross amounts Net amounts statement of financial

of recognised of financial position
Gross amounts  financial assets liabilites 3 #& A 4R & B FS MR &
of recognised  set off in the presented in the AEHZ BB S
consolidated consolidated consolidated Cash
financial statement of statement of Financial collateral
liabilities financial position financial position  instruments received  Net amount
e MK e M
KRR A 0
BEHRirEe AIREHEzZ 23N eR B U ER
TRIBERAR TRUEE afEFE <SmIA BeEAM R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FHET FHET FET FET 13
Description o
Derivatives PTET A (455) - (455) 455 — —
The disclosures set out in the tables above include TERAF 2 EERIEEBIR
derivative contracts through the banks. The related TEMZTEAH - BRAE
collaterals are included in bank balances. If a default HoEBRERITHERT -
occurs, the banks are able to exercise the right to offset MENZEE RITETER
against any favourable derivative contracts and/or the BHEEMEHRITERZLT
collaterals placed. EEHRRE FHRE R R

T 85
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A condensed statement of financial position of the Company as
at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 is as follows:

ASSETS

Investments in subsidiaries
Amount due from a subsidiary
Prepayments

Bank balances

LIABILITIES
Amount due to a subsidiary
Other payables

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves (Note)

&E
MEARKRE

& L2 BfY 88 1 A SR IR
BNER
RITHEH

&8fE
& 1 B B8 X R] 3R IR
H Al & 3R

BEXRREE
&N
s (ffat)

AKATHR2013F12A31H k2012
F12A318 2 B AR 0 R 81 at 4o

T

2013
HK$’000
TERT

18,592
15,000
172
226

33,990

1
316

317

33,673

82,500
(48,827)

33,673

2012
HK$'000
TAET

18,591
15,000
172
255

34,018

302
302

33,716

82,500
(48,784)

33,716



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 35. ELATFMRBRARE(E)

COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: et -
Reserves B’iE
Accumulated Special
(loss) profits reserve Total
25 (EH8E),
Y Fl 45 Bl At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2012 F2012€F 1818 (14,505) (49,345) (63,850)
Profit for the year F 3% F 97,566 — 97,566
Dividends recognised as distribution & #2522 f% B (82,500) — (82,500)
At 31 December 2012 R20124 128318 561 (49,345) (48,784)
Profit for the year F K5 F 70,082 = 70,082
Dividends recognised as distribution 2 #5252 Ik 2 f% & (70,125) - (70,125)
At 31 December 2013 R20134 128318 518 (49,345) (48,827)
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A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the previous four
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the five years ended 31 December 2013
and the listing document of the Company dated 31 May 2011 issued
in connection with its introduction after restatement for change of
accounting policies related to property, plant and equipment and

defined benefit scheme, is set out below:

2009
HK$'000
FHETT
(restated)
(eE7)
RESULTS 4
Revenue & ERE 727,555
Profit before taxation B 5% B 5 ) 121,693
Income tax expenses {8 B X (9,526)
Profit for the year F W& F 112,167
2009
HK$'000
FET
(restated)
(E7)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ERE®E
Total assets BELEE 504,927
Total liabilities B EARE
Net assets BEFR 241,617

(263,310) (253,872)

ANEEBHE2013F12831BEFER
ZANBEFEEEREEABRAE
(AP AREBEHZE2013F 1283181
BAFEHERELCEREE M B R
x) 0 RAQNFNR20114E5 831 BE%TA
BANBER LT XL TR E - K
CERBRAEMSTENSHBRE
SlreENEYIEAT

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBLEE

2010 2011 2012 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT FET THER
(restated)  (restated)  (restated)
(kED) (KEH) KEH)
853,539 873,815 932,916 817,344
116,859 117,694 120,031 79,156
(9,471)  (10,925)  (10045)  (6,775)
107,388 106,769 109,986 72,381

At 31 December

R12A31H
2010 2011 2012 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FET THER
(restated)  (restated)  (restated)
(R=EH) (KEH) (KE)
398,758 464,285 414,176 393,818

(222,989) (144,095) (122,092)

144,886 241,296 270,081 271,726
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